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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held at 
11.30.A.M on 24th September 2016 at the registered of�ce of the Company situated at Malkapur Village, Hatnoora 
Mandal, Narsapur Taluk, and Medak District-502 296, Telangana to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016, the Statement of Pro�t and 
Loss for the year ended on that date along with Cash Flow Statement and notes forming part of accounts, 
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint Sri. Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod (DIN: 00272129) as Director who retires by rotation and is eligible 
for reappointment.

3. To appoint Smt. Bharathi Nalin Rathod (DIN: 02587701)as Director who retires by rotation and is eligible for 
re-appointment

4. To appoint Auditors and �x their remuneration.

In this connection, to consider and if thought �t, to pass the following as an Ordinary Resolution;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under, as amended from time to time, M/s. M. S. Krish-
naswami & Rajan, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 01554S), be and is hereby re-appointed as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold of�ce from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, at such remuneration plus service tax, out-of-
pocket expenses, travelling expenses etc., as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the 
Company and the Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. Re-appointment of Mr. Tribhuvan Simh Rathod as Managing Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought �t, to pass with or without modi�cation(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution. 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the 
Board of Directors subject to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modi�cation or re-enact-
ment thereof) read with Schedule- V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, 
approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Tribhuvan 
Simh Rathod (DIN: 01996833), as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 2 years with effect from 
11th August, 2016 to 12th August, 2018 at NIL Remuneration.

6. Appointment of Mr. Gopalachari Padmanabhan as Independent Director of the Company;

To consider and if thought �t, to pass with or without modi�cation(s), the following resolution as a Ordinary 
Resolution. 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modi�cation(s) or reenactment 
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thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the mem-
bers of the Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint, Mr. Gopalachari Padmanabhan (DIN: 00101432), 
Director of the Company in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing signifying his can-
didature for the of�ce of Independent Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company to hold of�ce for a period of �ve consecutive years from 08th February, 2016.”

7. Appointment of Mr. Tenkasi Ramanarayanan Seetharaman as Independent Director of the Company:

To consider and if thought �t, to pass with or without modi�cation(s), the following resolution as a Ordinary 
Resolution. 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modi�cation(s) or reenact-
ment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint, Mr. Tenkasi Ramanarayanan Seetharaman 
(DIN: 02385221), Director of the Company, in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing 
signifying his candidature for the of�ce of Independent Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independ-
ent Director of the Company to hold the of�ce for a period of �ve consecutive years from 08th February, 2016.”

8. Appointment of Mr. Kaushik Dhirajlal Shah as Independent Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought �t, to pass with or without modi�cation(s), the following resolution as a Ordinary 
Resolution. 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and the Rules made there under, as amended from time to time, the con-
sent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint Mr. Kaushik Dhirajlal Shah (DIN: 
00024305), who has been appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board of Directors in 
terms of section 161 of the Act on 21.05.2016 and who holds of�ce upto the date of this Annual General Meet-
ing and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under section 160 of the Act from 
a member proposing his candidature for the of�ce of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company for a period of �ve consecutive years from 21st May 2016.”

9. Authority to borrow in excess of the paid up capital and reserves.

To consider and if thought �t, to pass with or without modi�cation(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution. 

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier resolution passed by the Members of the Company in the 
previous Annual General Meeting, the Board of Directors of the company be and is hereby authorized in 
accordance with the provisions of Sec.180(1)( c ) and other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies 
Act,2013, to borrow from time to time all such sums of money as may deem requisite for the purpose of 
the business of the Company provided that the moneys to be borrowed together with the moneys already 
borrowed by the company apart from temporary loans obtained from the company’s bankers in the normal 
course of business shall not exceed the aggregate of the paid-up capital and free reserves by More that Rs. 
50 Crores (Rupees Fifty Crores only)”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to �nalize and execute such documents as may be required and to do all such acts, deeds, mat-
ters and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary proper or desirable in the best interest of 
the Company.”
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10. Authority to create mortgages, charges and hypothecations

To consider and if thought �t, to pass with or without modi�cation(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, in modi�cation of the resolution passed at the previous Annual General Meeting, the 
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with Articles of Association of the Company, for the creation of such mortgages, charges and 
hypothecations, on all immovable and movable properties of the company, both present and future, up to 
an amount not exceeding the aggregate of the paid up capital and free reserves by more than Rs. 50 Crores 
(Rupees Fifty Crores only) in favour of lending Financial Institution (s) / Corporate Body (s) / person (s) / Cor-
poration (s) / Government (s) / Lenders (s) / Bank (s) for moneys borrowed or to be borrowed.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and are hereby authorized to �nalize 
the terms and conditions for creating the aforesaid mortgages and / or charges and to execute the documents 
and such other agreements and also to agree to any amendments thereto from time to time as it may think �t 
for the aforesaid purpose and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary and expedi-
ent for giving effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

Place: Vadodara  Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod
Date: 6th August 2016 (DIN 00272129)

CHAIRMAN 
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NOTES
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY 

TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 
COMPANY. 

2. The proxy in order to be effective must be received by the Company at its registered of�ce not less than 48 
hours before the commencement of the meeting.

3. Members/proxies are requested to bring their copies of Annual Report and the attendance slip duly �lled in 
for attending the meeting. Copies of the Annual Reports will not be provided at the meeting.

4. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 17th September 
2016 to 24th September 2016.

5. Members are requested to notify any change in their addresses to the Company’s Share and Depository 
Transfer Agents. Members are also requested to intimate their email to the Company’s Share and Depository 
Agent.

6. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to convert their holdings into Demat. The Company’s 
Id with CDS (I) L and NSDL is INE298E01022. The Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents are M/s. 
CAMEO CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED, “Subramanian Building” 1- Club House Road, Chennai 600 002.

7. Members desiring any information as regards accounts are requested to write to the Company at least seven 
days before the date of the meeting to enable the management to keep the information ready at the meeting.

8. Copies of Annual Report are being sent by electronic mode only to all the members whose email address are 
registered with Company/Depository participant for communication purposes unless any member requested 
for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email addresses, physical copies of 
the Annual Report 2016 are being sent by the permitted mode.

9. The shares of the Company are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange. The Listing Fee for the year 2015-2016 
has been paid to Stock Exchange.

10. Brief resume of the Directors seeking reappointment and other details as stipulated under under SEBI (LODR) 
Regulation, 2015, are provided as part of the AGM notice.

11. Shareholders holding shares in physical form are invited to contribute to the cause of Green Initiative by reg-
istering their e-mail ID, by submitting the E- COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM inserted in the Annual 
Report.

12. Voting through Electronic Means:

In compliance with provisions of Section-108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to inform you the facility to exercise 
your voting right at the Annual General Meeting by electronic means (e-Voting) and the business may be 
transacted through e-voting Services provided by Central Depository Services Ltd (CDSL).

13. The procedure and instruction for e-voting are as under:

(i) The voting period begins on 20th September, 2016 on 09:00 A.M. and ends on 23rd September, 2016 
05:00 P.M. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 16/09/2016, may cast their vote electronically. 
The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
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(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meet-
ing venue.

(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

(iv) Click on Shareholders.

(v) Now Enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits bene�ciary ID, 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

(vi) Next enter the Image Veri�cation as displayed and Click on Login.

(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an 
earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

(viii) If you are a �rst time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for 
both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

•	 Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant 
are requested to use the �rst two letters of their name and the 8 digits folio number in 
the PAN �eld.

•	 In case the folio number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before 
the number after the �rst two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your 
name is Ramesh Kumar with folio number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN �eld.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for 
the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend 
Bank Details
 

Enter the Dividend Bank details) as recorded in your demat account or in the company 
records for the said demat account or folio

•	 Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the details are not 
recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id / folio number 
in the Dividend Bank details �eld as mentioned in instruction (v).

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(x) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. How-
ever, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are 
required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password �eld. Kindly note that this pass-
word is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other Company on which 
they are eligible to vote, provided that Company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password con�dential.

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.
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(xii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/
NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the 
Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A con�rmation box will be 
displayed. If you wish to con�rm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” 
and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xviii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image veri�ca-
tion code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android 
based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows 
phone users can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively 
on or after 30th June 2016. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while vot-
ing on your mobile.

(xx) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

	 •	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to 
log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

	 •	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be e-mailed 
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

	 •	 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and pass-
word. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

	 •	 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on 
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

	 •	 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to 
verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) 
and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evot-
ing@cdslindia.com.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

Place: Vadodara Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod
Date: 6th August 2016 (DIN 00272129)

CHAIRMAN 
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 forming part of the 30th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company

Item No.2

Mr. Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod (DIN: 00272129), Director of the Company, retiring by rotation at the ensuring AGM 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. In terms of section 152 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod being eligible, offers himself for re appointment.

His other directorships include M/s. Bell Granito Ceramica Limited, M/s. Atreya Finance Private Limited and 
M/s. Restile Marketing Private Limited. He is holding 81,26,383 shares  in the Company.

The Company has received from Mr. Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod, consent in writing to act as Director liable to 
retire by rotation. Except Mr. Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod being an appointee, and Mr. Tribhuvan Simh Rathod & 
Mrs Bharathi Nalin Rathod being relatives of Mr. Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod, none of the Directors and Key Mana-
gerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, �nancial or otherwise, in the 
resolution set out at item no.2.

This explanatory statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the 
Stock Exchange.

Item No.3

Smt. Bharathi Nalin Rathod (DIN: 02587701), Director of the Company, retiring by rotation at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. In terms of section 152 and other appli-
cable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Smt. Bharathi Nalin Rathod being eligible, offer herself for re- 
appointment.

Her other directorships include M/s. Atreya Finance Private Limited, M/s. Sologuard Medical Devices Private 
Limited and M/s. AVP Trading Private Limited.

The Company has received from Smt. Bharathi Nalin Rathod, consent in writing to act as Director liable to retire 
by rotation, Except Smt. Bharathi Nalin Rathod being an appointee and Sri. Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod and Mr. 
Tribhuvan Simh Rathod being relatives of Smt. Bharathi Nalin Rathod, none of the Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, �nancial or otherwise, in the resolution 
set out at item no. 3

This explanatory statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the 
Stock Exchange

Item No. 5

The shareholders at their 28th AGM held on 29.09.2014 have appointed Mr. Tribhuvan Simh Rathod as Managing 
Director of the Company till 11.08.2016. As the term of his of�ce is due for re-appointment, the Board at their 
meeting held on 06.08.2016 have re-appointed him for another term of 2 years w.e.f. 12.08.2016 without any 
remuneration, on the terms conditions as mentioned in the resolution, subject to the approval of shareholers.

Approval of the members is required by way of Ordinary Resolution for appointment and payment of remuneration.

Keeping in view that Mr. Tribhuvan Simh Rathod is a Chartered Accountant and has rich and varied experience 
in the Industry and has been involved in the operations of the Company over a long period of time, it would be in 
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the interest of the Company to continue the employment of Mr. Tribhuvan Simh Rathod as Managing Director of 
the Company.

Mr.Tribhuvan Simh Rathod, subject to the superintendence, control and direction of the Board of Directors, man-
age and conduct the business and affairs of the Company relating to Finance and Control. He shall not be paid 
any sitting fee for attending meetings of the Board or Committee thereof.

The appointment can be terminated by Mr.Tribhuvan Simh Rathod or the Company, by one party giving to the 
other 3(three) calendar months’ notice in writing or by payment of a sum equivalent to remuneration for the notice 
period or part thereof in case of shorter notice or on such other terms as may be mutually agreed.

His other directorships include M/s. Bell Granito Ceramica Limited (Managing Director), M/s. Atreya Finance Pri-
vate Limited, M/s. Sologuard Medical Devices Private Limited and M/s. Restile Marketing Private Limited. He is 
not holding any shares in the Company.

Notice has been received from a member signifying his intention to propose appointment of Mr. Tribhuvan Simh 
Rathod as Managing Director of the Company along with a deposit of Rs. 1,00,000/-. 

The Board of Directors recommended the resolution for the approval of Shareholders. 

Additional Disclosure about the appointee as per Schedule V Part II of the Companies Act, 2013.

•	 Nature of Industry:

M/s. Restile Ceramics Limited is in the Business of manufacturing of Vetri�ed Tiles. The Company was incor-
porated in 1986 and is based in Telangana, India.

•	 Date of Commencement of Commercial Production:

The commercial operations of the Company started during the year 1986.

•	 Financial Performance : Performance of the Company for the last three years is as follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Item
2014-15

(Rs.)
2013-14

(Rs.)
2012-13

(Rs.)

Income from Operations (Gross) 296.08 428.30 384.13

Pro�t / (Loss) before Tax (1084.26) (1274.61) (1077.80)

Pro�t / (Loss) after Tax (1095.00) (1274.61) (1077.80)

•	 Export Performance and net foreign exchange earnings : NIL

•	 Foreign Investments or Collaborations, if any : NIL

Except Mr. Tribhuvan Simh Rathod being an appointee and his relatives Mr. Nalinkanth Amritalal Rathod and 
Smt. Bharathi Nalin Rathod, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 
relatives are concerned or inter ested, �nancial or otherwise, in the resolution. 

This explanatory statement may also be read and treated as disclosure in compliance with the requirements 
of Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Item No.6

The Board at their meeting held on 08.02.2016 has appointed Mr. Gopalachari Padmanabhan, Non-Executive 
Director of the Company as Independent Director of the Company, subject to approval of shareholders.

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, which has come into force with effect from 1st April, 2014, an 
Independent Director shall hold of�ce for a term of five consecutive years on the Board of a Company and is not 
liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Gopalachari Padmanabhan has given a declaration to the Board that he meets the 
criteria of independence as provided under Section 149 (6) of the Act.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Gopalachari Padmanabhan fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder for appointment as Independent Director and he is independent of the management.

His other directorships include M/s. Bell Granito Ceramica Limited. He is not holding any shares  in the Company.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of Mr. 
Gopalachari Padmanabhan as Independent Director is now being placed before the Members in general meeting 
for their approval.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors shall be open for inspection by the Members 
at the Registered Office during normal business hours on any working day of the Company.

Except Mr. Gopalachari Padmanabhan being an appointee none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company and their relatives is concerned or inter ested, �nancial or otherwise, in the resolution. 

Item No.7

The Board at their meeting held on 08.02.2016 has appointed Mr. Tenkasi Ramanarayanan Seetharaman, Non-
Executive Director of the Company as Independent Director of the Company, subject to approval of shareholders.

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, which has come into force with effect from 1st April, 2014, an 
Independent Director shall hold of�ce for a term of five consecutive years on the Board of a Company and is not 
liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Tenkasi Ramanarayanan Seetharaman has given a declaration to the Board that he 
meets the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149 (6) of the Act.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Tenkasi Ramanarayanan Seetharaman fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and 
the Rules made there under for appointment as Independent Director and he is independent of the management.

His other directorships include M/s. Bell Granito Ceramica Limited. He is not holding any shares  in the Company.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of Mr. Tenkasi 
Ramanarayanan Seetharaman as Independent Director is now being placed before the Members in general meet-
ing for their approval.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors shall be open for inspection by the Members 
at the Registered Office during normal business hours on any working day of the Company.

Except Mr. Tenkasi Ramanarayanan Seetharaman being an appointee none of the Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or inter ested, �nancial or otherwise, in the resolution.
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Item No. 8

Mr. Kaushik Dhirajlal Shah was appointed as an Additional Director at the Board meeting held on 21.05.2016 in 
the capacity of Independent Director, in terms of section 161 of the Act and who holds of�ce upto the date of this 
Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under section 160 
of the Act from a member proposing his candidature for the of�ce of Independent Director. 

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, which has come into force with effect from 1st April, 2014, an 
Independent Director shall hold of�ce for a term of five consecutive years on the Board of a Company and is not 
liable to retire by rotation. Mr. Kaushik Dhirajlal Shah has given a declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria 
of independence as provided under Section 149 (6) of the Act.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Kaushik Dhirajlal Shah fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules 
made there under for appointment as Independent Director and he is independent of the management.

His other directorships include M/s. Amol Dicalite Limited, M/s. Arman Financial Services Limited, M/s. W H 
Brady And Company Limited, M/s. Brady And Morris Engineering Company Limited, M/s. Brady Services Private 
Limited, M/s. Energy Infrastructure (India) Limited and M/s. Global Tradecracker Private Limited. He is not holding 
any shares in the Company.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of Mr. Kau-
shik Dhirajlal Shah as Independent Director is now being placed before the Members in general meeting for their 
approval.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors shall be open for inspection by the Members 
at the Registered Of�ce during normal business hours on any working day of the Company.

Except Mr. Kaushik Dhirajlal Shah being an appointee none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their relatives are concerned or inter ested, �nancial or otherwise, in the resolution.

Item No. 9 & 10

The Company may need to borrow in excess of paid up capital and free reserves to meet the corporate and work-
ing capital requirements. As per section 180(1) (a) & 180 (1) (c) of Companies Act 2013, approval of shareholders 
by way of special resolution is required for borrowing in excess of Paid up capital and Free Reserves and to create 
charge on the properties of the company.

The Directors recommends the resolution for members’ approval as a Special Resolution pursuant to Section 
180(1) (a) & 180 (1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial persons and relatives are interested or concerned in passing of the 
resolution

By Order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

Place: Vadodra  Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod
Date: 06th August, 2016 (DIN 00272129)

Chairman 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members:
The Directors are pleased to present the 30th Annual Report of the Company together with its Audited Financial 
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2016.

Financial Results

Particulars

 Lakhs

2015-16 2014-15

Gross Sales 319.28 271.55

Other Income 20.76 34.50

EBITDA (191.38) (166.93)

Interest and Financial charges 26.86 95.73

Depreciation 785.35 821.60

Pro�t/(Loss) before taxes (1003.60) (1084.26)

Provision for taxes 3.12 10.74

Pro�t / (Loss) carried to Balance Sheet (1006.72) (1095.00)

Company Performance

The Company achieved a turnover of 319.28 Lakhs for the period ended March 31, 2016; increased by 47.73 
Lakhs (17.58%) as compared to previous year.

The total expenditure for the period ended March 31, 2016 stood at 1,343.94 Lakhs, decreased by 47.14 Lakhs 
(3.39%) as compared to previous year.

The Loss (EBITDA) before Depreciation, Finance Cost and Tax for the year ended March 31, 2016 amounted to 
191.38 Lakhs, increased by 24.45 Lakhs (14.65%) as compared to previous year.

The Loss before tax and Exceptional item(s) for the year ended March 31, 2016 amounted to 1003.60 Lakhs, 
decreased by 80.66 Lakhs (7.44%) as compared to previous year.

The provision for tax for the year ended March 31, 2016 stood at 3.12 Lakhs. The Loss after tax for the year 
ended March 31, 2016 stood at 1006.72 Lakhs as against a loss of 1095.00 Lakhs of the previous year. No 
transfer was made to General reserve during the year ended March 31, 2016.

Dividends

Your directors regret to state that in view of the continuous losses suffered by the company no dividend has been 
recommended for the year ended March 31, 2016.

Share Capital

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on date of Balance Sheet is 100,00,00,000/- divided into 
10,00,00,000 equity shares of 10/- each.

The paid up share capital of the company as on date of balance sheet is 98,27,92,390/- divided into 9,82,79,239 
equity shares of 10/- each.
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During the year under review, the company has neither increased the Authorised share capital nor allotted any 
equity shares

Borrowings

The Company’s borrowings as at March 31, 2016 stood at 3,365 lakhs as against 2916 lakhs as at March 31, 
2015.

Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any �xed deposits, within the meaning of section 73 of the companies Act 2013, 
Read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the period under review.

Information About Subsidiary / Joint Ventures

Your Company does not have any subsidiary or Joint Ventures nor is a subsidiary or Joint Venture to any other 
Company.

Particulars of related party contracts and other arrangements under section 188 of the company

All related party transactions that were entered into during the year under review were on arms-length basis, in the 
ordinary course of business and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Suitable disclosures as required under AS 18 have been made in notes to the �nancial statements; the Company 
has developed a related party transactions frame work through standard operation procedures for the purpose of 
identi�cation and monitoring such transactions.

Implementation of Risk Policy

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the listing Agreement, the Company has framed a Risk Management Policy. 

This policy framework enables the company to identify and evaluate risks and opportunities.

This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on business objective and enhance the 
Companies competitive advantage.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

The Board of Directors based on the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration committee appointed 
Mr. Kaushik D Shah as Additional Director under the category of Independent Directors with effect from May 
21, 2016. He holds of�ce up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and is further proposed to 
be appointed as Independent Director of the Company for a period of �ve years commencing from his date of 
appointment.

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors con�rming that they meet the criteria 
of Independence as prescribed both under the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

Mr. Narayan Gopalakrishnan ceased to be an Independent Director of the company with effect from December 
19, 2015 on account of his sad demise on that date.



REST I LE  CERAMICS L IMITED

30th ANNUAL REPORT 2015 – 16 15

Mr. Tribhuvan Simh Rathod, Managing Director, Mr. M. Subba Roa, Chief Financial Of�cer and Ms. Rekha Singh, 
Company Sectary are designated as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company pursuant to Section 203 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Board and Committee Meetings

The Board of directors has met four(4) times during the year on a quarterly basis to review and consider the quar-
terly �nancials of the Company. Details of the composition of the Board and its Committees and of the meetings 
held and attendance of the Directors at such Meetings, are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. The 
intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

Based on the framework of internal �nancial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the 
Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors including audit of internal �nancial 
controls over �nancial reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by Management and the rel-
evant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal 
�nancial controls were adequate and effective during the �nancial year 2015-16.

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(3) (c) and 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors to the best of their knowl-
edge and ability, con�rm that:–

i. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that 
there are no material departures;

ii. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at 
the end of the �nancial year March 31, 2016 and of the pro�t or loss of the Company for that period;

iii. they have taken proper and suf�cient care for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities;

iv. they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v. they have laid down the internal �nancial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
�nancial controls are adequate and are operating effectively;

vi. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Internal Controls and Systems

The company has an internal control system, commensurate with size and, scale and complexity of its operations.

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a mechanism for the Directors and employees to 
report genuine concerns about any unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s 
Code of Conduct. The provisions of this policy are in line with the provisions of Section 177 (9) of the Act and the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015/Listing Agreement.
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Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators

During the year under review, no signi�cant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribu-
nals impacting the going concern status and future operation of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibly

The company has incurred loss in the current year and past 3 years also. Even though Corporate Social Respon-
sibility is not mandatory, your Company is intrinsically associated with the society and environment by upholding 
its businesses with transparency and commitment.

Remuneration Policy

The Company had adopted a Remuneration Policy for the Directors, KMP and other employees, pursuant to the 
provisions of the Act and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The key principles governing the Company’s Remuneration Policy are as follows:

Remuneration for Independent Directors and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors

	 •	 Independent Directors (ID) and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors (NINED) may be paid sitting fees 
for attending the meetings of the Board and of Committees of which they may be members as recommended 
by the NRC and approved by the Board.

	 •	Overall remuneration should be reasonable and suf�cient to attract, retain and motivate Directors aligned to 
the requirements of the company; taking into consideration the challenges faced by the Company and its 
future growth imperatives.

	 •	Remuneration paid should be re�ective of the size of the Company, complexity of the sector/ industry/Com-
pany’s operations and the Company’s capacity to pay the remuneration and be consistent with recognized 
best practices.

	 •	 The aggregate commission, if any, payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by the NRC to 
the Board based on Company performance, pro�ts, return to investors, shareholder value creation and 
any other signi�cant qualitative parameters as may be decided by the Board. The NRC will recommend 
to the Board the quantum of commission for each Director based upon the outcome of the evaluation 
process which is driven by various factors including attendance and time spent in the Board and Com-
mittee Meetings, individual contributions at the meetings and contributions made by Directors other than 
in meetings.

	 •	 The remuneration payable to Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable for services rendered 
in any other capacity, unless the services rendered are of a professional nature and the NRC is of the opinion 
that the Director possesses requisite quali�cation for the practice of the profession.

Remuneration for Managing Director (MD)/ Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)/ rest of the 
Employees

	 •	 The extent of overall remuneration should be suf�cient to attract and retain talented and quali�ed individuals 
suitable for every role. Hence remuneration should be market competitive, driven by the role played by the 
individual, re�ective of the size of the Company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ Company’s operations 
and the Company’s capacity to pay, consistent with recognized best practices and aligned to any regulatory 
requirements.
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	 •	Basic/ �xed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income in line with their skills 
and experience. In addition, the Company provides employees with certain perquisites, allowances and 
bene�ts to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer scope for savings. The Company provides retirement 
bene�ts as applicable.

It is af�rmed that the remuneration paid to Directors, KMP and all other employees is as per the Remuneration 
Policy of the Company.

Evaluation of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company presently comprises of (8) Non-Executive Directors and one Executive 
Director viz., the Managing Director. The Directors appointed on the Board are from diverse �elds relevant to the 
Company’s business, having long-standing experience and expertise in their respective �elds. They have consid-
erable experience in managing large corporates and have been in public life for decades.

Non-Executive Directors add substantial value through the deliberations at the meetings of the Board and Com-
mittees thereof. To safeguard the interests of the investors, they also play a control role. In important Committees 
of the Board such as Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Com-
mittee etc., the Directors play an important role by contributing to the deliberations of the Committee Meetings. 
Besides contributing at the meetings of the Board and Committees, the Non-Executive Directors also have off-
line deliberations with the Management of the Company and add value through such deliberations.

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, performance of the 
Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of executive 
and non-executive directors.

Listing

The Equity Shares of your Company are listed at BSE Limited, Mumbai. 

The Listing fees to these Stock Exchanges and custodian fees to NSDL and CDSL have been paid by the Com-
pany for the �nancial year 2015-16.

Auditors

(i) Statutory Auditors:
M/s M.S Krishnaswami & Rajan, Chartered Accountants,(Firm Reg No.01554S), Who are statutory auditors of 
the company to hold of�ce up to the forth coming Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment is 
recommended by the Board for re-appointment as statutory auditors to hold of�ce till conclusion of 31th Annual 
General Meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec.139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there-under, the com-
pany has obtained written con�rmation from M.S Krishnaswami & Rajan, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Reg 
No.01554S) that their appointment, if made, would be in conformity with limits speci�ed in the said section.

Regarding the Quali�cations/Comments of auditors in their report, the directors wish to state:

The Auditors had quali�ed the �nancial statements for the year ended March 31,2016 regarding adoption of Going 
Concern principles in drawing up the �nancial statements for the said year , non-recognition of possible impair-
ment in value of Building and Plant and Machinery. The issue of negative operating cash �ows and incurrence of 
operating losses over the years highlighted by Auditors are being addressed through proposed restructuring of 
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operations and merger with another company which is pending approval of BIFR. Under the rehabilitation scheme 
sanctioned by BIFR in 2002, a reserve of Rs.754.44 Lakhs had been created (upon capital reduction) towards 
adjustment of identi�ed impairment in value of �xed assets. Steps have been initiated to adjust the impairment in 
value against the reserve with the approval of BIFR. 

(ii) Cost Audit
As per the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Read with Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules 2014, as amended from time to time, the maintenance of cost records and the requirement of audit 
of cost records accordance with the applicable rules are not applicable to the company.

(iii) Secretarial Audit
Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the companies act 2013 and rules made there under the company has 
appointed M/s A.S. Ramkumar & Associates, a �rm of Practicing Company Secretaries (C.P No.9228) to under-
take the Secretarial Audit of the company. The secretarial audit report is included as Annexure – B and forms an 
integral part of this report.

Corporate Governance Report, Management Discussion & Analysis Report

As required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the report on Man-
agement Discussion & Analysis, Corporate Governance as well as the Auditor’s certi�cate on the compliance of 
Corporate Governance thereon are attached and form part of the Annual Report.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Transfer and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Particulars pursuant to the provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 is furnished in the Annexure to this report. 

Particulars of Employees & Remuneration

The information required under section 197(12) of the Act, read with rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is furnished in the Annexure 3 to this report.

The information required under Rule 5 (2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 in the Annexure forming part of the Report. In terms of the �rst proviso to section 136 of the 
Act, the Report and accounts are being sent to the shareholders excluding the aforesaid Annexure. Any sharehold-
er interested in obtaining the same may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Of�ce of the Company.

Disclosures as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at its workplace and has adopted a Policy on prevention, 
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at the workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harass-
ment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for 
prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. 

During the Year under review the company has not received any complaints on sexual harassment.

Extract of Annual return

The details forming part of the extract of the annual return in form MGT-9 as required under section 92 of the 
companies Act 2013 is included in this Report as Annexure –A and forms as integral part of this Report.
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Appreciation

Your director’s wish to place on record their appreciation for the contribution made by the employees at all levels 
but of whose hard work and support your company’s achievements would not have been possible. Your directors 
also wish to thank its customers, dealers, agents, suppliers, investors and bankers and various State and Central 
Government Agencies. The Directors also take this opportunity to thank the shareholders for their continued con-
�dence reposed in the Management of the company. 

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Vadodara Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod T R Seetharaman

Date: 6th August 2016 (DIN 00272129) (DIN 02385221)

Chairman Director

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
Conservation of Energy, Technology Transfer and Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo
The Information under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March, 31, 2016 is given here below and forms part of the Directors 
Report.

Conservation of Energy

In line with the Company’s Commitment towards conservation of energy the company is putting efforts to con-
serve energy by means of minimal consumption of power. Total Units of power consumed during the year was 
128991 units amounting to Rs.11.83 Lacs (2014:15 117350 units amounting to Rs.55.43 Lacs). During the year 
there was no production and hence the Gas consumption is Nil (2014:15 Nil)

Technology Absorption:

As there are no productions/operations during the year 2015-16, nothing much happened in the areas of Technol-
ogy absorption, new product development, cost reduction and quality improvement.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 

2015-16 2014-15

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Foreign Exchange Earnings Nil Nil

Foreign Exchange outgo Nil Nil
 



FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms 
length transactions under third proviso thereto

S. No. Particulars

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions 
not at arm’s length basis:

NIL

(a)  Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

(c)  Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:

(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if any:

(e)  Justi�cation for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions

(f)  Date(s) of approval by the Board:

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h)  Date on which the special resolution was passed in 
general meeting as required under �rst proviso to 
section 188:

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or 
transactions at arm’s length basis:

(a)  Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:

Details attached in Annexure

(b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

(c)  Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:

(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if any:

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod T R Seetharaman 
Place : Vadodra Chairman Director

Date : 06-08-2016 DIN: 00272129 DIN: 02385221
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ANNEXURE

S. No.
Name of the Related 
Party

Nature of 
Transaction

Duration of 
Transaction

Salient terms of the 
transaction including 

the value, if any

Date of 
approval by the 

board, if any

1
Bell Granito Ceramica 
Limited

Sales Continual Rs. 29403426/- 30-05-2015

2
Bell Granito Ceramica 
Limited

Purchases Continual Rs. 74783/- 30-05-2015

3
Bell Granito Ceramica 
Limited

Others One Time Rs. 1233295/- 30-05-2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod T R Seetharaman 
Place : Vadodra Chairman Director
Date : 06-08-2016 DIN: 00272129 DIN: 02385221
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FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the �nancial year ended on 31.03.2016

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1)  
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS : 

i) CIN : L26931TG1986PLC006480

ii) Registration Date : 26.05.1986

iii) Name of the Company : RESTILE CERAMICS LIMITED

iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company
Indian Non Government company

: Limited by Shares

v) Address of the Registered of�ce and Contact 
Details

: Malakapur Village, Hatnoor Mandal, Narsapur 
Taluk, Medak-502296, Telangana

vi) Whether listed company : Yes

vi) Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Ltd, 
Subramanian Building”1, Club House Road, 
Chennai -600 002.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of main products / 
services

NIC Code of the Product/ 
service

% to total turnover of the 
company

1 Virti�ed Tiles 69079010 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING SUBSIDARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. 
No.

Name And Address Of The 
Company CIN/GLN

Holding/ 
Subsidary/ 
Associate

% Of 
Shares 
Held

Applicable 
Section

1 Sologuard Medical Devices(p)ltd U33119TN1999PTC041980  Associate Nil

2 Atreya Finance pvt ltd U65910KA1996PTC020066 Associate Nil

3 Bell Granito Ceramica limited U18907GJ1993PLC018901 Associate Nil

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

Category of Shareholders
No. of Shares held at the beginning  

of the year
% of 

Change 
During 

the 
YearDemat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares Demat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

1) Indian

Individual/HUF — — — — 39323 — 393223 0.40
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Category of 
Shareholders

Category of Shareholders
No. of Shares held at the beginning  

of the year
% of 

Change 
During 

the 
YearDemat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares Demat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares

Central Government — — — — — — — —

State Government(s) — — — — — — — —

Bodies Corp. — — — — — — — —

Banks / FI — — — — — — — —

Any Other… —

Sub-Total (A)(1) — — — — 39323 — 393223 0.40

2) Foreign

NRIs- Individuals 8126383 — 8126383 8.27 812633 — 812633 8.27

Other – Individuals — — — —

Bodies Corp. 62596302 — 62596302 63.69 62596302 — 62596302 63.69

Banks/FI — — — — — — — —

Any Other… — — — — — — — —

Sub-Total (A)(2) 70722685 — 70722685 71.96 70722685 — 70722685 71.96

Total Shareholding 
of Promoters  
(A) = (A1) + (A2)

70722685 — 70722685 71.96 70762008 0 71115908 72.36

B. Public Shareholding 

1. Institutions — — — — — — — —

Mutual Funds 17500 1800 19300 0.02 17500 1800 19300 0.02

Central Government 100000 — 100000 0.10 100000 — 100000 0.10

State Government(s) — — — — — — — —

Venture Capital Funds — — — — — — — —

Insurance Companies — — — — — — — —

FIIs — — — — — — — —

Foreign Venture — — — — — — — —

Others (specify) — 40 40 0.00 — 40 40 0.00

Sub-total (B)(1) 117500 1840 119340 0.12 117500 1840 119340 0.12

2. Non-Institutions — — — — — — — —

Bodies Corp. 423535 9281 432816 0.44 540068 9281 549349 0.56

Indian Overseas 14335631 — 14335631 14.59 14335631 — 14335631 14.59

Individuals — — — — — — — —

i) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital upto Rs.1 Lakh 

771912 586490 1358402 1.38 502188 594970 1097158 1.12

ii) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in 
excess of Rs.1 Lakh 

6808272 — 6808272 6.93 6738566 0 6738566 6.86

Others (Specify) 4502093 — 4502093 4.59 4362610 0 4362610 4.45



Category of 
Shareholders

Category of Shareholders
No. of Shares held at the beginning  

of the year
% of 

Change 
During 

the 
YearDemat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares Demat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares

Sub-total (B)(2) 26841443 595771 27437214 27.93 26439740 604251 27043991 27.52

Total Public 
Shareholding
(B) = (B)(1) + (B)(2)

26958943 597571 27556514 28.04 26557240 606091 27163331 27.62

C. Share held by 
Custodian for GDRs & 
ADRs

— — — — — — — —

Grand Total
(A + B + C)

97681628 597611 98279239 100 97319248 606091 98279239 100

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl.No.
Shareholder’s 
Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year

% of 
Change 
During 

the Year
No. of  
Shares

% of 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
pledge 

emcumbred 
total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
pledge 

emcumbred 
total shares

1. Nalinkant 
Amratlal 
Rathod

8126383 8.27 Nil 8126383 8.27 Nil Nil

2. Solomed  
Pte Ltd

62596302 63.69 Nil 62596302 63.69 Nil Nil

Total 70722685 71.96 Nil 70722685 71.96 Nil Nil

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. No.

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
of the company

No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
of the company

1 At the beginning of the year 70722685 71.96% 70722685 71.96%

2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during 
the year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / 
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc);

Nil Nil Nil Nil

3 At the End of the year 70722685 71.96% 70722685 71.96%
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iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
of the company

No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
of the company

1 For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders LIST ENCLOSED

2 At the beginning of the year

3 Date wise Increase / Decrease 
in Share holding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / 
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus / sweat equity etc)

4 At the End of the year ( or on the 
date of separation, if separated 
during the year)

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sl.
No. For Each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
of the company

No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
of the company

1 Nalinkanth Amratlal Rathod  
At the beginning of the year

8126383 8.27 8126383 8.27

2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase/ decrease (e.g. allot-
ment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc)

NA NA NA NA

3 At the End of the year 8126383 8.27 8126383 8.27

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning 
of the �nancial year
 i) Principal Amount
ii)  Interest due but not paid 
iii) Interest accrued but not due

213933967.09
-
-

77679156
-
-

-
-
-

291613123.09
-
-

Total (i+ii+iii) 213933967.09 77679156 - 291613123.09
Change in Indebtedness during 
the �nancial year
•	Addition
•	Reduction (212300021)

257226390.13
-

-
-

257226390.13
(212300021)

Net Change (212300021) 257226390.13 - 44926369.13
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Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the end of the 
�nancial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

1633946.09
-
-

334905546.13
-
-

-
-
-

336539492.22
-
-

Total (i + ii + iii) 1633946.09 334905546.13 - 336539492.22

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

Sl. no. Particulars of Remuneration
Name of MD/

WTD/Manager Total Amount

1. Gross salary
(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)  

of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c)  Pro�ts in lieu of salary under section 17(3)  

Income-tax Act, 1961

TRIBHUVAN SIMH 
RATHOD

Rs. 30,00,000/-

2. Stock Option NIL

3. Sweat Equity NIL

4. Commission
- as % of pro�t
- others, specify…

NIL
NIL

5. Others, please specify NIL

Total (A) NIL

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors

Sl. no. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors
Total

Amount

3. Independent Directors
Fee for attending board committee meetings
•	Commission
•	Others, please specify

NIL

Total (1)
4. Other Non-Executive Directors
•	 Fee for attending board committee meetings
•	Commission
•	 Others, please specify

Total (2)
Total (B)=(1+2)
Total Managerial
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Sl. 
No. Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO
Company
Secretary CFO Total

1. Gross salary
(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 

Act, 1961
(c)  Pro�ts in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income-tax Act, 1961

NIL 180000 180000 360000

2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL
3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL
4. Commission

- as % of pro�t
- others, specify…

NIL NIL NIL NIL

5. Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total NIL 180000 180000 360000

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type 

Section of the 
Companies 

Act
Brief 

Description

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment / Compounding 

fees imposed

Authority 
[RS / NCLT 
/ COURT]

Appeal 
made, if any 
(give Details)

COMPANY

Penalty NIL

Punishment NIL

Compounding NIL

DIRECTORS

Penalty NIL

Punishment NIL

Compounding NIL

OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty NIL

Punishment NIL

Compounding NIL
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod T.R. Seetharaman
Chairman Director
00272129 02385221

Place: Vadodara
Date : 6th August 2016
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ANNEXURE -B

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED March 2016
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule

No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF M/S. RESTILE CERAMICS LIMITED
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

To,
The Members,
Restile Ceramics Limited
Malkapur Village, Hatnoora Mandal
Narsapur Taluk, Medak District – 500 082

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by M/s. Restile Ceramics Limited. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon.

Based on our veri�cation of the M/s. Restile Ceramics Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
�led and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its of�c-
ers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clari�ca-
tions given to us and the representations made by the Management, We hereby report that in our opinion, the 
Company has, during the audit period covering the �nancial year ended on 01st April 2015 to 31st March 2016
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes 
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns �led and other records made available to 
us and maintained by M/s. Restile Ceramics Limited for the �nancial year ended on 01st April 2015 to 31st March 
2016 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regula-
tions, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

c.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2009; (During the FY 2015-2016 not applicable to the company)
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d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Pur-
chase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (During the FY 2015-2016 not applicable to the company)

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
(During the FY 2015-2016 not applicable to the company)

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regula-
tions, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (During the FY 2015-2016 not applicable 
to the company)

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (During the FY 
2015-2016 not applicable to the company) and

h.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (During the FY 
2015-2016 not applicable to the company)

vi. Further, we have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India., with respect to Board and 
General Meetings.

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited read 
with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regu-
lations, 2015

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, Listing Agreements, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regula-
tions, 2015 etc. as mentioned above.

vii. We further report that the Company has, in our opinion, complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules made thereunder as noti�ed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Memorandum and 
Articles of Association of the Company.

We further report that:-

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clari�cations on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously. 

We further report that during the audit period the Company does not have any major events / actions which 
either directly or indirectly effect the Company’s affair in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 
guidelines, standards etc.

The audit on other laws as may be applicable speci�cally to the Company is carried out based on the reports 
provided to us. We report that the Company has substantially complied with the provisions of those Acts that are 
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applicable to Companies having factories with manufacture of Vitri�ed tiles; other laws related to maintenance of 
Factories, laws related to Human resources including Employees Provident Fund Act, Employees State Insurance 
Act. Based on the information, explanations and management representation, the Company has substantially 
complied with the Tax laws and other Acts & laws applicable to the Company.

Place: Hyderabad For A S RAMKUMAR & ASSOCIATES
Date: 06.08.2016 Company Secretaries

A S RAMKUMAR
Partner
FCS 8149, CP.9228

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral 
part of this Report

ANNEXURE A
To 
The Members of
Restile Ceramics Limited

Our Report of Even date is to be read along with this letter
1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility 

is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.  We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The veri�cation was done on test basis to ensure 
that correct facts are re�ected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not veri�ed the correctness and appropriateness of �nancial records and books of accounts of the 
Company. 

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events, etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the veri�cation of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the ef�-
cacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Hyderabad For A S RAMKUMAR & ASSOCIATES 
Date: 06.08.2016 Company Secretaries

A S RAMKUMAR
Partner
FCS 8149, CP.9228
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
As per the last GDP growth estimates, there is growth in Indian economy in the Financial Year 2015-16 compared 
to Financial Year 2014- 2015. Reduced in�ation, stable Rupee, improved purchasing power and higher capital 
in�ows supported by the government policy reforms have already put India on an accelerating growth track and 
improved the business outlook.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE 
1. The paid up equity share capital as at March31, 2016 stood at 98.27crore. During the year under review, the 

company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor has granted any stock options or sweat 
equity. As on March 31, 2016 none of the directors of the company hold instruments convertible into equity 
shares of the company.

2. Net Revenue from operations during the year was Rs.316.45 lacs as against Rs.261.58 Lacs during the previ-
ous year. During the year there was no production and the revenue was generated out of sale of materials 
from Stock.

3. On the Expenditure part, there has been decrease in total expenditure compared to previous year. The Follow-
ing tabular statement depicts the increase/ (decrease) of various types of expenditure

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Sl.No Nature of Expenditure 2015-16 2014-15
Increase/

(Decrease)

1. Raw Material Consumption (including 
Movement in Finished Goods Stock)

320.04 204.61 115.43

2. Employee Expenses 71.23 108.74 (37.51)

3. Power and fuel 12.12 55.43 (43.31)

4. Finance Costs 26.86 95.73 (68.87)

5. Other Expenses 128.34 104.96 23.38

6. Depreciation and amortization 785.35 821.60 (36.25)

Total 1343.94 1391.08 (47.14)

It is clear from the above statement that all the expenditure except other expenditure shows a decreasing trend 
compared to previous year. The Increase in Raw Material Consumption (including movement in �nished goods) is 
due to the liquidation of Stock of Raw Materials and Finished Goods that has resulted in increased sales revenue 
for the year.

1. Internal Controls and systems are reviewed periodically and corrective actions are taken upon requirement.

2. Opportunities and challenges: No Production during the year. During the year major portion of old materials 
which were lying in stock for long period were sold.

3. Threats: Since the vitri�ed market enjoys consistent growth and assured returns, companies in the organized 
and unorganized sector are expected to come up with latest technology, which may result in pressure on the 
realizations. However, the uniqueness of the products will help us in garnering the Project and Industrial sector 
which help in overcoming the competition
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4. Risks and Concerns:
The company speci�c risks remain by and large the same as enumerated last year. The Company is con-
suming LPG which is a petroleum product for �ring the tiles. The prices of petroleum products depend upon 
international market and subject to volatility. Some of the competitors who have the facilities of natural gas, 
tax incentives etc. are dominating the market. There may be a threat from some of the larger capacity players, 
who have varied range of products, effects and colors to dominate market presence.

5. Human Resource & Industrial Relations:
Majority of Employees were settled in the previous year. The relationship with the balance employees has 
been fairly cordial.

6. Cautionary statement:
Statements in this Directors report & management discussion and Analysis describing the company’s objec-
tives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward-looking statements” within the 
meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those 
expressed or implied. Important factors that could impact are raw material availability and its prices, cycli-
cal demand and pricing in the company’s principle market, changes in government regulations, tax regimes, 
economic developments within India and countries in which the company conducts business.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance has been in existence in your Company since its inception, before it was mandated. The 
principles of Corporate Governance are embedded as a fundamental principle of businesses. The Corporate Gov-
ernance framework of the Company is to manage the affairs in a fair and transparent manner, which has assisted 
in evolving guidelines and best practices over the years to ensure adequate disclosure of information.

The Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance as mandated by SEBI (Listing Obli-
gations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Clause 49 of the erstwhile Listing Agreement executed 
with the Stock Exchanges) (‘Listing Regulations’) as detailed below for the year ended March 31, 2016:

Board of Directors:-

1. The Board of Directors of the company shall have optimum combination of Executive and Non- Executive 
directors. As on 31st March 2016, the Company has Eight (8) Directors with a Non-Executive chairman. Of 
the Eight Directors, Seven (7) are Non-Executive Directors with four (4) of them being Independent Directors, 
one (1) Nominee Director and one (1) Women Director. The Non-Executive Directors possess rich and varied 
experience in different facets of corporate functioning. The Company under the Board of Directors along with 
the Committees, provides leadership, guidance to the Management, directs and supervises the performance 
of the Company thereby enhancing stakeholders value. The Board has �duciary relationship in ensuring that 
the rights of all stakeholders are protected. The Company with the help of expertise and knowledge of the 
Directors has optimized its value in the business. The details of Directors seeking re-appointment are fur-
nished in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

2. “Independent Directors” of the Company have been appointed as per the provision of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Governance Guidelines for Board effectiveness as adopted by the Company. Directors who 
apart from receiving Director’s remuneration, do not have any material pecuniary relationships or transactions 
with the Company, its Promoters, its Directors, its Senior Management or its holding company, its subsidiar-
ies and associates, which may affect the independence of the Director. Formal appointment letters have been 
issue to the Independent Directors.

3. The Directors made necessary disclosures with regard to committee positions across all the Companies in 
which he/she is a Director as per the Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations.

4. None of the Directors of the Board serve as members of more than 10 committees nor Chairman of more than 5 
Committees, as per the requirements of the Listing Regulations. “Committees” for this purpose include the Audit 
Committee and the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee and the details of the same forms part of this report.

5. Pursuant to Regulation 25(1) of the Listing Regulations all the Directors are in compliance with the limit pre-
scribed to hold Independent Directorship in the listed companies.

6. During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met four times and the period between any 
two meetings did not exceed 120 days. The dates of the Board Meetings held during each quarter are as follows: 

Date of Meetings Total no. of Directors No. of Directors present
30th May,2015 9 7
24th July, 2015 9 7
31st Oct, 2015 9 8
08th Feb, 2016 8 6
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7. Independent Directors of the Company separately met once on February 08,2016 as required under Sched-
ule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 (Code for Independent Directors) and Regulation 25(3) of the Listing 
Regulations. None of the Non Independent Directors and members of the Management were present at the 
meeting.

8. Independent Directors at their meeting reviewed/assessed the following

a) Reviewed the performance of Non Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

b) Reviewed the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into consideration of the views of 
Managing Director and Non-Executive Directors; and

c) Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of �ow of information between the Company management 
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

9. All Independent Directors were present at the meeting of Independent Directors and Mr. N.S. Mani, Indepen-
dent Director, Chaired the meeting.

10. The Independent Directors are already familiar with the nature of the Industry, and business model of the 
Company, considering their expertise contribution no familiarization program was organised during the year.

11. All the relevant information, as recommended by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)/ Stock 
Exchanges, is being furnished to the Board from time to time.

12. The details of remuneration sitting fees paid to the directors are being furnished in this report

13. The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors and all Non-Executive Direc-
tors have af�rmed compliance with the said Code for the �nancial year ended March 31, 2016. 

14. All Board Members and senior management personnel, pursuant to Regulation 26(3) of the Listing Regulation 
have af�rmed compliance with the applicable code of conduct. The Annual Report of the Company contains 
a Certi�cate duly signed by the Managing Director in this regard.

15. Other than the transactions entered into in the normal course of business, no materially signi�cant related 
party transactions entered by the Company during the year, which could have potential con�ict of inter-
est between the Company and its Promoters, Directors, Management and/or relatives. The Company has 
adopted Policy for Related Party transactions.

16. Due to changes in directorship during the �nancial year the Company was required to appoint an Indepen-
dent Director to comply with Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations. Mr. T S Seetaraman, (Din: 02385221) 
and Mr. G. Padmanabhan (Din 00101432), Non-Executive Directors of Company were appointed as Inde-
pendent Director of the Company on February 08th, 2016, and Mr. Kaushik D Shah (DIN. 00024305) was 
appointed an Independent Director with effect from May 21, 2016.
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Composition of Committees Membership as on March 31,2016:-

Name of Director DIN No

Name of Committees of Board

Audit 
Committee

Nomination 
and 

Remuneration 
Committee

Shareholders 
Relationship and  
Share Transfer 

Committee

Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod 00272129  -  -  - 

Tribhuvan Simh Rathod 01996833  M  -  - 

Bharathi Nalin Rathod 02587701  -  -  - 

Nalandula Srinivasa Rao Ramachandran 00089348  M  C  C 

Gopalachari Padmanabhan 00101432  M  -  M 

Tenkasi Ramanarayanan Seetharaman 02385221  C  -  M 

Narayanan Subramanian 02577983  M  M  - 

N Gopalakrishnan1 03015270  M  M  - 

Rajendra Prasad Kandikattu 00143653  -  -  - 

C:- Chairman M:- Member

1 Mr. N. Gopalakrishnan Ceased to be a director of the company on account of his demise on December 
19,2015.

The Mandatory Committees of the Company constituted by the Board are as hereunder inter alia includes the 
following:-

1. Audit Committee:

The Company’s Audit Committee comprises of Independent Directors and Non Independent Directors. Each 
Member of the Committee has relevant experience in the �eld of �nance and accounting.

Powers of Audit Committee:
The powers of audit committee shall include the following:

1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

2. To seek information from any employee.

3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it consider necessary.

Terms of reference of Audit Committee:
The terms of reference of Audit Committee inter alia are as follows:

1. Oversight of the Company’s �nancial reporting process and the disclosure of its �nancial information to 
ensure that the �nancial statement is correct, suf�cient and credible.

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the 
Company.

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditor(s) for any other services rendered by them.
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4. Reviewing; with management, the annual �nancial statements before submission to the Board for its approv-
al with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 
report in terms of clause (C) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management, if any.

d. Signi�cant adjustments made in the �nancial statements arising out of audit �ndings, if any.

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to �nancial statements.

f. Disclosure of related party transactions, if any.

g. Quali�cations in the (draft) audit report, if any.

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly �nancial statements before submission to the Board for 
approval.

6. Reviewing; with management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public 
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for the purposes other than those 
stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitor-
ing the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue and making appropriate recommendations to the 
Board to take up steps in this matter.

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

8. Approval or any subsequent modi�cation of transactions of the Company with related parties;

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

11. Evaluation of internal �nancial controls and risk management systems;

12. Reviewing with management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control 
systems.

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit depart-
ment, staf�ng and seniority of the of�cial heading the department, reporting structure coverage and fre-
quency of internal audit.

14. Discussion with internal auditors for any signi�cant �ndings and follow up there on.

15. Reviewing the �ndings by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or 
a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

16. Discussion with statutory auditor(s) before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well 
as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, share-
holders (in case of nonpayment of declared dividend(s) and creditors.

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.
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19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the 
�nance function or discharging that function) after assessing the quali�cations, experience & background, 
etc. of the candidate.

20. Carrying out any other functions as mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

Review of information by Audit Committee
The Audit Committee reviewed the following information:

1. Management discussion and analysis of �nancial conditions and results of operations;

2. Statement of signi�cant related party transactions (as de�ned by the audit committee), submitted by manage-
ment;

3. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to review of 
the Audit Committee;

The Committee met four times during the period under review. Audit Committee meetings were attended by the 
Internal Auditors and the Statutory Auditors. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Commit-
tee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting.

Shareholders Relationship and Share Transfer Committee:-
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee’s term of reference includes the following

a. Consider and resolve grievances of all classes of investors of the company;

b. Review statutary complaince relating to stakeholders.

c. Ensure setting of proper controls and oversee the perfornance of Registrar and Share Transfer Agent;

d. Look into the redressing of the shareholders complaints and queries;

e. Review movement in shareholdings and ownership structure of the Company;

f. Oversease complaince in rescpect of dividend payment and transfer of unclaimed dividend amount to IEPF.

g. Consider and resolve greavences of stakeholders including compliance related to transfer of securities, non-
receipt of Annual Report / Dividend Warrant etc.

Share transfers are processed weekly and approved by the Share Transfer Committee. Investor grievances are 
also placed before the Committee. The Committee met on March 31, 2016 to review the various matters related 
to the Stakeholders during the year under review. There were no pending investor complaints which remained 
unresolved.

The Company has also cleared complaints received through SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES). The 
Company also uploads its Action Taken Reports (ATRs) with respect to the complaints; enable online viewing by 
investors about the current status. All valid share transfers lodged up to March 31, 2016, have been processed 
by the Committee. During the Year the Company received two complaints from shareholders which were resolved 
in prescribed time limits.



REST I LE  CERAMICS L IMITED

42 30th ANNUAL REPORT 2015 – 16

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
The Committee consists of 3 members of which 3 are independent directors. The terms of reference of the Com-
mittee include inter-alia the following:-

a. Formulation of the criteria for determining quali�cations, positive attributes and independence of a director 
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and other employees;

b. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

c. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

d. Identifying persons who are quali�ed to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management 
in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. The 
company disclosed the remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria in its Annual Report.

As there was no change or appointment of Managing director or Key Managerial Personnel during the year the 
committee did not have any meeting.

Remuneration of the Managing Director:
The remuneration paid during the �nancial year 2015 – 2016 to the Managing Director is furnished hereunder:

Particulary Mr. Tribhuvan Simh Rathod

Salary, Incentive and perquisites 30,00,000.00

Contribution to Provident and Gratuity Fund 21,600

Performance Incentive Payable NIL

Shares held as on March 31, 2016. NIL

The Company does not have any stock option schemes for its employees/directors.

Sitting fee (remuneration) paid to Non-Executive Directors during the �nancial year 2015-16 and the details of 
shareheld by them as on March 31, 2016 are as under:

Name of Director Amount No of Shares Held

Nalandula Srinivasa Rao Ramachandran 40000 NIL

Gopalachari Padmanabhan 30000 NIL

Tenkasi Ramanarayanan Seetharaman 48000 NIL

Narayanan Subramanian 48000 NIL

N Gopalakrishnan1 30000 NIL

Rajendra Prasad Kandikattu NIL NIL
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General Body Meetings:
Location, date and time of the Annual General Meetings held during the last 3 years are given below:

Year Location Date of AGM Day Time

2013 Registered Of�ce the Company at 
MalkapurVillage,Hatnoora Mandal, Narsapur 
Taluq, Medak Dist, A.P

August,10,2013 Saturday 12.00 P.M

2014 Registered Of�ce the Company at 
MalkapurVillage,Hatnoora Mandal, Narsapur 
Taluq, Medak Dist, A.P

September 29, 2014 Saturday 11.30 A.M

2015 Registered Of�ce the Company at 
MalkapurVillage,Hatnoora Mandal, Narsapur 
Taluq, Medak Dist, A.P

September, 19, 2015 Saturday 11.30 A.M

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at all the above AGMs.

No EGM was held in the last three years except .i.e. on 28rd March 2014.

Special Resolutions have been passed in the previous three Annual General Meetings held in 2013, 2014 and 
2015.

For the year 2015-16, no postal ballot was conducted.

Compliance with Non-Mandatory Requirements:

1. The Board: A separate Of�ce is not maintained for the Non-Executive Chairman of the Company. The Compo-
sition of the Board of Directors, Committees of the Board are in line with the provisions of the Listing Agreement, 
the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws.

2. Shareholders’ Rights: The Financial performance of the Company on quarterly basis including a summary of 
signi�cant events are published in English and Local Telugu Newspaper. Hence, this information’s are not sent to 
each household of shareholders individually.

3. Audit Quali�cations: The Company endeavors to adopt best practices to ensure regime of unquali�ed �nan-
cial statements.

General Shareholder Information

Corporate Indenti�cation Number L26931TG1986PLC006480

Registered Of�ce Malkapur Village,
Hatnoora Mandal, Narsapur Taluk, 
Medak District-502 296,
Telangana

Name, Contact Details of Compliance 
Of�cer

N.Srinivasan
Malkapur Village,
Hatnoora Mandal, Narsapur Taluk, 
Medak District-502 296,
Telangana
Email: restile@accountscare.com
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Corporate Indenti�cation Number L26931TG1986PLC006480

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Ltd,
Subramanian Building”1, Club House Road, 
Chennai 600 002.
Telephone No: 044-28460390

Date, Time and Venue of AGM 24 September, 2016
At Registered of�ce at Malkapur Village,
Hatnoora Mandal, Narsapur Taluk, 
Medak District-502 296,
Telanagana

Financial Calendar

Financial Year 1st April-31st March

Financial Report For

Quarter Ending 30th June On or Before August 15th

Quarter Ending 30th September On or Before November 15th

Quarter Ending 31st December On or Before February 15th

Quarter Ending 31st March On or Before May 30th 

Cut-off for e-Voting 16 September 2016

E-Voting Window Dates 20 September 2016 9:00 AM to 23 September 2016 5:00 PM

Date of Book Closure 17 September 2016 to 24 September 2016 

Equity Shares

Stock Exchange Stock Code

BSE Limited 515085

ISIN No. INE298E01022

The company has paid annual listing fees to the Stock Exchanges in respect of �nancial year 2016-2017. 

Market Price Data: High Low during each month in the last �nancial year

Month
Highest
(Rs.)

Lowest
(Rs.) Month

Highest
(Rs.)

Lowest
(Rs.)

April ‘15 6.05 3.65 October’15 7.86 5.64

May’15 6.28 4.25 November’15 7.39 5.03

June’15 6.00 4.13 December’15 10.44 6.22

July’15 5.10 3.72 January’16 9.98 6.09

August’15 7.36 4.05 February’16 8.00 3.80

September’15 6.96 4.30 March’16 4.91 3.83
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Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2016

Sl No Category No. Of shares % of shareholding

1 Promoters 70722685 71.96

2 Mutual funds and UTI 19300 0.02

3 Banks, Financial Institution, Insurance companies 40 0.00

4 Private Corporate Bodies 532816 0.54

5 Indian Public 8337032 8.49

6 NRIs/OCBs 16757512 17.05

7 Clearing Members 104 0.00

8 Foreign Bodies 1909750 1.94

Total 98279239 100.00

List of Persons holding more than 1% of total number of shares as on March 31, 2016

Sl No Name of Shareholders No. of Shares % of Share Capital

A. Promoters & Promoter Group

1. Solomed Capital Pte. Ltd 62596302 63.6922

2. Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod 8126383 8.2685

B. Public

1. Springboard Paci�c Enterprise Inc. 14335631 14.5866

2. Rudrapatna Gunduramiah Narayanaswamy 5486704 5.5827

3. Sri Jaya Incorporated 1909750 1.9431

4. Saraswathi Kuppuswami 1038700 1.0568

Distribution Schedule of Share Holding as on March 31, 2016

Holding of number of Shares or 
Debentures

Share/Debenture (Holders) Shares/Debentures (Amount)

Number % Rs. %

 1 - 5000 23128 98.0041 7823990 0.7960

 5001 - 10000 187 0.7924 1508140 0.1534

 10001 - 20000 110 0.4666 1699160 0.1728

 20001 - 30000 40 0.1694 996450 0.1013

 30001 - 40000 26 0.1101 917850 0.0933

 40001 - 50000 29 0.1228 1374210 0.1398

 50001 - 100000 35 0.1483 2393680 0.2435

100001 - Above 44 0.1864 966078910 98.2993

Total 23599 100.000 982792390 100.000
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Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

Keeping in view the requirements of SEBI and Stock Exchange, a quali�ed Practicing Company Secretary carried 
out Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Deposi-
tory Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital.

The Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report placed before the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis is also 
sent to the Stock Exchanges where the company’s shares are listed con�rms that the total issued/paid-up capital 
is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares 
with NSDL and CDSL.

Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity

At the end of March 31, 2016, shares comprising approximately 99.40% of the Company’s Equity Share Capital 
have been dematerialized.

Status on Demateriliased Shares (Equity ISIN No INE298E01022)

Mode No of Shares % to paid up Capital

Physical 595211 0.6057

NSDL/CDSL 97684028 99.3943

98277399 100.00

Investor Correspondence

For any queries, investors are requested to get in touch with the Secretarial department at At Registered of�ce at 
Malakpur Village, Hatnoora Mandal, Narsapur Taluk, Medak District-502 296,Telanagana, restile@accountscare.
com is available for investor complaints.

Usage of electronic payment modes of making cash payments to the investors

SEBI vide its Circular No. CIR / MRD/DP/10/2013 dated March 21,2013 has instructed all Companies for making

cash payments to the investors, companies whose securities are listed on Stock Exchange shall use, either 
directly or through their RTI & STA, any RBI (Reserve Bank of India) approved electronic mode of payment such 
as ECS (Local ECS) / RECS (Regional ECS) / NECS (National ECS),NEFT etc.

Investors are requested to kindly provide their requisite bank account particulars by quoting their reference folio 
number (s) in case shares are held in physical form.
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In case shares are held in dematerialized form, investors may kindly provide the requisite bank account details 
to their Depository Participant, to ensure that future dividend payments are correctly credited to the respective 
account.

Location of Manufacturing Units of Company
Malkapur Village,
Hatnoora Mandal, Narsapur Taluk, 
Medak District-502 296,
Telangana

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR UNDER PARA D OF SCHEDULE V OF SEBI
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS,

2015 REGARDING ADHERENCE TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT

In accordance with para D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 
2015, I hereby con�rm that, all the Directors and the Senior Management personnel of the Company have af�rmed 
compliance with their respective Codes of Conduct, as applicable to them, for the �nancial year ended March 
31, 2016.

For RESTILE CERAMICS LIMITED

Place: Vadodara Tribhuvan Simh Rathod
Date: 6th August 2016 Managing Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF RESTILE CERAMICS LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 
1. We have audited the accompanying standalone �nancial statements of RESTILE CERAMICS LIMITED

(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of Pro�t and Loss 
and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the signi�cant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone �nancial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the �nancial position, �nancial performance and cash �ows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act as applicable.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the pro-
visions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate inter-
nal �nancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the �nancial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility 
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone �nancial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder and the Order under section 143(11) of the Act.

4. We conducted our audit of the standalone �nancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
speci�ed under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical require-
ments and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the �nancial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in 
the �nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assess-
ment of the risks of material misstatement of the �nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal �nancial control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation of the �nancial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the account-
ing policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the �nancial statements.

6. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf�cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the standalone �nancial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
7. The Company has generated negative operating cash �ows, incurred substantial operating losses, signi�cant 

deterioration in value of assets used to generate cash �ows and its loans from bank have been recalled by 
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lender all of which indicate existence of material uncertainty in the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. The attached �nancial statements do not include any adjustments 
that might result had the above uncertainties been known.

8. The Company’s building and plant and equipment are carried in the Balance Sheet at Rs.849.21 lakhs and 
Rs.3948.89 lakhs respectively. Independent valuation of the assets of the company in �nancial year 2010-11 
had indicated impairment of Building (Rs.522.17 lakhs) and Plant and Machinery (Rs.119.87 lakhs). However, 
considering the lapse of time and the depreciation being charged on the basis of estimated useful life of 
assets, the aforesaid impairment in value of assets need to be recomputed. As such, the possible impairment 
on assets and its effect on statement of Pro�t & Loss is to be taken as unascertained as on March 31, 2016. 

Opinion
9. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the 

effect of the matters described in the Basis for quali�ed opinion paragraph, the aforesaid standalone �nancial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at March 31, 2016, and its loss and its cash �ows for the year ended on that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
10. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Pro�t and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for quali�ed opinion in para-
graph 8, the aforesaid standalone �nancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act as applicable.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2016 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquali�ed as on March 31, 2016 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal �nancial controls over �nancial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report 
expresses an unmodi�ed opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
�nancial controls over �nancial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The company has, in accordance with the generally accepted accounting practice, disclosed the 
impact of pending litigations on its �nancial position in its �nancial statements - Also Refer Note 28.01 
to the �nancial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses under the applicable law or accounting standards.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.
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11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government 
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters speci�ed in para-
graphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For M.S. Krishnaswami & Rajan M.S. Murali
Chartered Accountants Partner
Registration No. 01554S Membership No. 26453
May 21, 2016, 
Chennai

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 10(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report 
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1. We have audited the internal �nancial controls over �nancial reporting of RESTILE CERAMICS LIMITED
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the �nancial statements of the Com-
pany for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal �nancial controls based 

on the internal control over �nancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essen-
tial components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include 
the design,implementation and maintenance of adequate internal �nancial controls that were operating effec-
tively for ensuring the orderly and ef�cient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s poli-
cies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and com-
pleteness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable �nancial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors` Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal �nancial controls over �nancial report-

ing based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Inter-
nal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal �nancial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal �nancial controls over �nancial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal �nan-
cial controls system over �nancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal �nancial 
controls over �nancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal �nancial controls over �nan-
cial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the �nancial state-
ments, whether due to fraud or error.
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5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf�cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal �nancial controls system over �nancial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
6. A company’s internal �nancial control over �nancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of �nancial reporting and the preparation of �nancial statements for exter-
nal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal �nancial 
control over �nancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly re�ect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of �nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of man-
agement and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the �nancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal �nancial controls over �nancial reporting, including the pos-

sibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal �nancial controls 
over �nancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal �nancial control over �nancial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Quali�ed Opinion
8. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material 

weakness has been identi�ed as at March 31, 2016:

The Company’s building and plant and equipment are carried in the Balance Sheet at Rs.849.21 lakhs and 
Rs.3948.89 lakhs respectively. Independent valuation of the assets of the company in �nancial year 2010-11 
had indicated impairment of Building (Rs.522.17 lakhs) and Plant and Machinery (Rs.119.87 lakhs). However, 
considering the lapse of time and the depreciation being charged on the basis of estimated useful life of 
assets, the aforesaid impairment in value of assets need to be recomputed. The Company`s internal control 
system has to be redesigned to periodically assesss and recognise impairment in value of �xed assets.

9. A ‘material weakness’ is a de�ciency, or a combination of de�ciencies, in internal �nancial control over 
�nancial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s 
annual or interim �nancial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

10. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the 
effects/possible effects of the material weakness described in paragraph 8 above on the achievement of the 
objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal �nan-
cial controls over �nancial reporting and such internal �nancial controls over �nancial reporting were operating 
effectively as of March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over �nancial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

11. We have considered the material weakness identi�ed and reported above in determining the nature, timing, 
and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the �nancial statements of the Company for the year ended 
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March 31, 2016, and the said material weakness has affected our opinion on the �nancial statements of  the 
Company and we have accordingly, issued a quali�ed opinion on the �nancial statements of the Company 
for the year ended March 31, 2016.

For M.S. Krishnaswami & Rajan M.S. Murali
Chartered Accountants Partner
Registration No. 01554S Membership No. 26453
May 21, 2016
Chennai

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 11 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date on the accounts of RESTILE CERAMICS LIMITED (“the Company”) for the year ended 
March 31, 2016)

(i) In respect of its �xed assets: 
(a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and 

situation of �xed assets. The same, however, needs to be updated.
(b) The �xed assets are being physically veri�ed under a phased programme of veri�cation, which, in our 

opinion, is reasonable having regard to the nature and value of its assets, and no material discrepancies 
have been noticed on such veri�cation carried out during the year in terms of the phased programme.

(c) On the basis of documents of title produced to us and the information and explanations produced to us, 
we are of the opinion that the title deeds of immovable properties of the Company are held in its name.

(ii) The inventories have been physically veri�ed at the year- end by the Internal Auditor and no material discrep-
ancies have been reported that needs to be dealt with in the Books of Account.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, �rms, Limited Liability Part-
nerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments, provided guarantees and security covered 
under provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(v) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits during 
the year and accordingly, the provisions of Clause 5 of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been speci�ed by the Central Government under section 148(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 for the products of the Company. 

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us and the books of account examined by us, in 
respect of statutory dues:

(a) Delays were noticed in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s state 
insurance, income tax, sales tax, value added tax and other statutory dues with the appropriate authori-
ties during the year. The arrears of such dues outstanding as at March 31, 2016 for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable are:

Nature of Dues Amount (Rs. Lakhs)

Sales Tax 15.32

Property Tax 2.50

Professional Tax 0.19

We are informed that the delays were caused due to �nancial constraints.
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(b) There are no dues of income tax, service tax, excise duty, cess and customs duty, which have 
not been deposited on account of any dispute. Sales Tax/ Value added tax dues not deposited on 
account of dispute are as under

Name of the 
Statute

Nature of 
Dues

Forum where 
Dispute is Pending

Year to which the 
demand relates

Amount of Tax  
Demanded (Rs.Lakhs)

Sales Tax APVAT Dy. Commissioner
(Appeals) 

2010-2011 Tax – Rs.30,23,024
Paid – Rs.3,78,000
Balance Rs.26,45,024

Sales Tax APVAT Dy. Commissioner
(Appeals)

2011-2012 Tax – Rs.4,19,876
Penalty – Rs.41,988
Paid Rs.52,500
Balance – Rs.4,10,364

(viii) As per information and explanation given to us, the bank has called upon in the earlier year itself the 
Company to pay back the entire working capital loan. The balance of Rs. 408.51 lakhs on April 1, 2015 
was overdue to State Bank of India and the amount overdue as at the end of the year is Rs. 16.34 lakhs. 
There are no dues to �nancial institutions or debenture holders.

(ix) There are no monies raised during the year by way of public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) and term loans.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information and explanations given to us, and 
considering the size and nature of the Company’s operations, no fraud by the Company and no fraud of mate-
rial signi�cance on the Company by its of�cers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/ 
provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions 
of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company has complied 
with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the 
related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the �nancial state-
ments as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions during the year with its directors or persons connected with him 
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For M.S.Krishnaswami & Rajan M.S.Murali
Chartered Accountants Partner
Firm Regn No: 01554S Membership No: 26453
Place: Chennai
Date: May 21, 2016
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2016

Particulars Note 
As at 31st March, 

2016
As at 31st March, 

2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ funds

  (a) Share capital 1 9,827.92 9,827.92 

  (b) Reserves and surplus 2  (9,161.22)  (8,154.50)

666.70 1,673.42 

Non-current liabilities

  (a) Long-term borrowings 3  -   1,730.83 

  (b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 4  -    -   

  (c) Other long-term liabilities 5 95.07 110.01 

  (d) Long-term provisions 6 11.53 2.56 

106.60 1,843.40 

Current liabilities

  (a) Short-term borrowings 7 3,365.40 1,185.30 

  (b) Trade payables 8

    (a)  Total outstanding dues of Micro & Small 
Enterprises

 -    -   

    (b)  Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than 
(a) above

947.20 1,237.23 

  (c) Other current liabilities 9 772.21 839.92 

  (d) Short-term provisions 10 2.21 9.07 

5,087.02 3,271.52 

TOTAL 5,860.32 6,788.34 

ASSETS

Non-current assets

  (a) Fixed assets

   (i) Tangible assets 11 4,867.16 5,652.52 

   (ii) Capital work-in-progress 196.14 196.13 

5,063.30 5,848.65 

  (b) Long-term Investments 12  -    -   

  (c) Long-term loans and advances 13 120.60 135.97 

5,183.90 5,984.62 



REST I LE  CERAMICS L IMITED

30th ANNUAL REPORT 2015 – 16 55

Current assets

(a) Inventories 14 419.20 486.20 

(b) Trade receivables 15 56.22 51.98 

(c) Cash and cash equivalents 16 5.39 4.44 

(d) Short-term loans and advances 17 194.13 259.62 

(e) Other current assets 18  1.48 1.48 

676.42 803.72 

TOTAL 5,860.32 6,788.34 

Note:
Statement on Signi�cant Accounting Policies and accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial 
Statements

As per our Report attached
For and on behalf of the Board

For M.S. KRISHNASWAMI & RAJAN TRIBHUVAN SIMH RATHOD T R SEETHARAMAN
Chartered Accountants DIN:01996833 DIN:02385221
Firm Registration No.01554S Managing Director Director

M S MURALI N SUBRAMANIAN M.SUBBARAO
Partner DIN:02577983 Chief Financial Of�cer
Membership No.26453 Director 

Place : Chennai
Date :May 21,2016
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2016

Note As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

INCOME

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Revenue from operations 19  319.28 271.55 

Less: Excise duty  2.82 9.97 

Revenue from operations (Net)  316.46 261.58 

Other income 20  20.76 34.50 

Total revenue (1+2)  337.22  296.08 

EXPENSES

 (a) Cost of materials consumed 21  284.79 138.42 

 (b) Purchase of traded goods 22  0.75  0.09 

 (c)  Changes in inventories of �nished 
goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-
trade

23  34.51 66.11 

 (d) Employee bene�ts expense 24  71.23 108.74 

 (e) Finance costs 25  26.86 95.73 

 (f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 26  785.35 821.60 

 (g) Power and Fuel  12.12 55.43 

 (h) Other expenses 27  80.94 60.41 

Total expenses 1,296.55 1,346.53 

Pro�t / (Loss) before exceptional and 
extraordinary items and tax (3 - 4)

 (959.33)  (1,050.45)

Exceptional items  44.27 33.81 

Pro�t / (Loss) before extraordinary items 
and tax (5 + 6)

 (1,003.60)  (1,084.26)

Extraordinary items  -    -   

Pro�t / (Loss) before tax (7 ± 8)  (1,003.60)  (1,084.26)

Tax expense:

 (a) Current tax expense 

   - Current Year

   - Prior Year (Net)  3.12 10.74 

 (b) Deferred tax (net)  -    -   

Pro�t / (Loss) from continuing operations 
(9 ±10)

 (1,006.72)  (1,095.00)
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DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS

Pro�t / (Loss) from discontinuing operations 
(before and after tax)

 - -

 - -

TOTAL OPERATIONS

Pro�t / (Loss) for the year (11 ± 12)  (1,006.72)  (1,095.00)

Earnings per share (of Rs.10/- each) before 
and after Extraordinary item

 -  Basic and Diluted from Continuing and 
Total operations.

 (1.02)  (1.11)

Note:
Statement on Signi�cant Accounting Policies and accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial 
Statements

As per our Report attached
For and on behalf of the Board

For M.S. KRISHNASWAMI & RAJAN TRIBHUVAN SIMH RATHOD T R SEETHARAMAN
Chartered Accountants DIN:01996833 DIN:02385221
Firm Registration No.01554S Managing Director Director

M S MURALI N SUBRAMANIAN M.SUBBARAO
Partner DIN:02577983 Chief Financial Of�cer
Membership No.26453 Director

Place : Chennai
Date :May 21,2016
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2015-16 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 
2015 

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

A. Cash �ow from operating activities

Pro�t / (Loss) before tax  (1,006.72)  (1,095.00)

Adjustments for:

 Depreciation and amortisation  785.35  821.60 

 Finance costs  26.14  95.73 

 Unrealised exchange loss/(gain)  (0.87)  (77.21)

 unclaimed balances written back  (16.14)  (28.55)

 Interest (income)  (1.48)  (4.67)

  Provision for Bad trade receivables 
written back on recovery

 -    (0.20)

 Provision for Bad trade recievables  0.01  793.02  0.68 

Operating pro�t / (loss) before working 
capital changes

 (213.71)  (287.63)

Changes in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in 
operating assets:

 Inventories  67.00  42.11 

 Trade receivables  (3.38)  82.80 

 Short-term loans and advances  65.50  (33.58)

 Long-term loans and advances  15.36  25.40 

 Other current assets  -    (1.48)

 144.48  115.26 

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in 
operating liabilities:

 Trade payables  (290.03)  (154.86)

 Other current liabilities  (51.56)  46.11 

 Other long-term liabilities  (14.94)  (2.30)

 Short-term provisions  (6.86)  (31.13)

 Short-term Borrowings  (392.17)  -   

 Long-term provisions  8.97  (8.69)

 (746.60)  (150.86)

Cash generated from operations  (815.82)  (323.23)

Net income tax (paid)/refunds

Net cash �ow from / (used in) 
operating activities (A)

 (815.82)  (323.23)
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B. Cash �ow from investing activities

 Capital expenditure on �xed assets  -    -   

 Proceeds from sale of �xed assets  -    -   

 Interest received  1.48  4.67 

Net cash �ow from / (used in) investing 
activities (B)

 1.48  4.67 

C. Cash �ow from �nancing activities

Proceeds from short term borrowings  2,572.26  531.75 

Repayment of short term borrowings  -    (9.11)

Repayment of long term borrowings  (1,730.83)  -   

Interest payments  (26.14)  (95.73)

Net cash �ow from / (used in) 
�nancing activities (C)

 815.29  426.91 

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and 
cash equivalents (A+B+C)

 0.95  108.36 

Cash and cash equivalents at the 
beginning of the year

 4.44  (512.44)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 
the year

 5.39  (404.08)

 0.95  -    108.36 

Note: 

Statement on Signi�cant Accounting Policies and accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial 
Statements

As per our Report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For M.S. KRISHNASWAMI & RAJAN TRIBHUVAN SIMH RATHOD T R SEETHARAMAN
Chartered Accountants DIN:01996833 DIN:02385221
Firm Registration No.01554S Managing Director Director

M S MURALI N SUBRAMANIAN M.SUBBARAO
Partner DIN:02577983 Chief Financial Of�cer
Membership No.26453 Director

Place : Chennai
Date : May 21, 2016



REST I LE  CERAMICS L IMITED

60 30th ANNUAL REPORT 2015 – 16

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Share capital

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

(a) Authorised

100,000,000 (2015:100,000,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 
each with voting rights 

10,000.00  10,000.00 

(b) Issued 

98,279,239 Equity shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights 9,827.92  9,827.92 

(c) Subscribed and fully paid up

98,279,239 Equity shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights 9,827.92  9,827.92 

Total 9,827.92 9,827.92 

1.1 Reconciliation of the number of Equity Shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of 
the reporting period.

Particulars As at 31 March, 2016 Rs.in lakhs As at 31 March, 2015 Rs.in lakhs

No of Equity Shares Amount No of Equity Shares Amount 

Balance at the Beginning  98,279,239  9,827.92  98,279,239  9,827.92 

Balance at the end  98,279,239  9,827.92  98,279,239  9,827.92 

1.2 Shareholders holding more than 5% of the Total Share Capital.

Name of the Shareholder No of Equity Shares of Rs.10 each held

2016 % 2015 %

1. Mr Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod  8,126,383 8.27% 8,126,383 8.27%

2.  Solomed Capital Pte Ltd- Holding 
Company

 62,596,302 63.69% 62,596,302 63.69%

3. Capital Carriers Ltd  11,689,671 11.89% 11,689,671 11.89%

1.3 The Equity Shareholders are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared, a right to vote in proportion 
to holding etc and their rights,preferences and restrictions are governed by terms of their issue and the provi-
sions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2: Reserves and surplus

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

(a) Capital Reserve

  Opening balance  33.37  33.37 

  Add: Additions during the year  -    -   

  Less: Utilised / transferred during the year  -    -   

  Closing balance  33.37  33.37 

(b) Central Subsidy from Government of India

  Opening balance  12.75  12.75 

  Add: Additions during the year  -    -   

  Less: Utilised during the year  -    -   

  Closing balance  12.75  12.75 

(c) Capital Reduction Reserve

  Opening balance  754.44  754.44 

  Add: Additions / transfers during the year  -    -   

  Less: Utilisations / transfers during the year  -    -   

  Closing balance  754.44  754.44 

(d) Surplus / (De�cit) in Statement of Pro�t and Loss 

  Opening balance

  Add: Pro�t / (Loss) for the year  (8,955.06)  (7,860.06)

  Closing balance  (1,006.72) (1,095.00)

Total  (9,961.78)  (8,955.06)

 (9,161.22)  (8,154.50)

2.1  Capital Reserve represents amounts transferred upon cessation of liability under One time Settlement in 
earlier years.

2.2  Capital Reduction Reserve arose out of reduction in Equity Share Capital effected in Financial Year 2002-03 in 
terms of the order of the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR) dated December 18,2002.

Note 3: Long-term borrowings 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Secured:

12.54 %Deep Discount Bonds  -  1,730.83 

 Total  -  1,730.83 
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3.1: 537,524 Deep Discount Bonds of Rs.1000/- each were issued to Atreya Finance Pvt Ltd on March 30, 2009 
at a discounted price of Rs.322. The said Bonds mature on March 31,2019 but both the parties have options to 
redeem/encash the same at an earlier date at predetermined discount rate or at a price to be agreed upon at 
the time of conversion after due written notice to the other party. The terms of these bonds were renegotiated 
with the incremental price payable from a negotiated date after March 31,2015 instead of April 1,2010 as initially 
agreed upon. Since the bonds are redeemable at the issue price upto the said negotiated date no discount was 
recognised in the �nancial statements up to that date. The Bonds have been repaid to bondholder in full during 
the current year.

3.2 : The Deep Discount Bonds were to be secured by all movable and immovable assets of the Company other 
than current assets hypothecated to working capital bankers and 3rd �oor premises in Varun Towers, Begumpet. 
The Charge was under creation for the year ending 31/03/2015. However, the Deep Discount Bonds have been 
fully redeemed / repaid in the current �nancial year, and hence no security needs to be created as at the end of 
the year in respect of the same.

Note 4: Deferred tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Composition of net deferred tax liability

  Deferred tax liabilities

   - On account of Depreciation  527.52  614.64 

 527.52  614.64 

  Deferred tax assets

   - On account of Unabsorbed depreciation  527.52  614.64 

 527.52  614.64 

Deferred Tax Liability (Net)  -    -   

4.1 In the light of the Company having an history of recent losses, accrual of deferred tax asset is restricted to 
timing differences, the reversal of which will result in suf�cient income as laid down in para 18 of Accounting 
Standard 22 “Accounting for Taxes on Income”

Note 5: Other long-term liabilities 

Particulars As at 31st March, 
2016

As at 31st March, 
2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

(a) Trade Payables (including Acceptance)

  (i) Micro,small and Medium Enterprises (Refer Note. 28.13)  -  - 

  (ii) Others  -  - 

(b) Others: 

  (a) Trade / security deposits received from dealers  95.07  110.01 

Total  95.07  110.01 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 6: Long-term provisions 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Provision for employee bene�ts: 

(i) Provision for compensated absences  0.41  0.40 

(ii) Provision for gratuity  11.11  2.16 

Total  11.52  2.56 

6.1 Details of Long-term Provisions

Particulars Opening Addition/(Deletion) Closing

(i) Compensated Absences  0.40  0.02  0.41 

(ii) Gratuity  2.16  8.95  11.11 

Note 7: Short-term borrowings 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Loans repayable on demand

  -From banks 

   Secured  16.34  408.51 

  Unsecured  -    -   

 16.34  408.51 

Interest free loan from related patry, unsecured 

 - From Managing Director  3,114.41  542.14 

 - From other companies  234.65  234.65 

Total  3,365.40  1,185.30 

7.1 Details of security for the secured short-term borrowings:

Particulars Nature of security

As at 31 March, 2016 As at 31 March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Loans repayable on 
demand from banks:

Cash Credit -State 
Bank of India 

Secured by hypothecation of Stocks, 
Stores,spares and consumables, 
Receivables and equitable Mortgage 
of 3rd Floor Premises in Varun Towers 
Begumpet.

 16.34  408.51 

Total - from banks  16.34  408.51 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7.2 Unsecured borrowing from bank represents temporary overdraft facility.

7.3 The Loans from Banks carry interest of Prime Lending Rate (PLR) plus a rate of interest applicable to the 
Company based on norms,which varies depending upon “credit rating” by the lender and external agency.

Note 8 Trade payables

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Trade payables (including Acceptances)

 (i)  Micro, Small and Medium enterprises [Refer 
Note. 28.09]

 -  - 

 (ii) Others  947.20  1,237.23 

Total  947.20  1,237.23 

Note 9 Other current liabilities

Particulars As at 31st March, 
2016

As at 31st March, 
2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

(a)  Statutory remittances (Contributions to PF and ESIC, Withholding 
Taxes, Excise Duty, etc VAT, Service Tax, etc.)

 24.37  59.53 

(b) Payables on purchase of �xed assets  -    -   

(c) Advances from customers  544.52  520.62 

(d) Dues to employees and others  191.09  259.63 

(e) Others  12.23  0.14 

Total  772.21  839.92 

Note 10 Short-term provisions

Particulars As at 31st March, 
2016

As at 31st March, 
2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

(a) Provision for employee bene�ts:

  (i) Provision for compensated absences  0.12  0.12 

  (ii) Provision for gratuity  2.09  8.95 

Total  2.21  9.07 

10.1 Details of Short-term Provisions

Particulars Opening Addition/(Deletion) Closing

(i) Compensated Absences  0.12  0.00  0.12 

(ii) Gratuity  8.95  (6.87)  2.09 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 12 Long -Term Investments

Particulars
As at 31st March, 

2016
As at 31st March, 

2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Trade - Investment in Unquoted equity shares of subsidiary 9,900 
(As at 31 March, 2015: 9,900) shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up in 
Restile Marketing Private Ltd

- - 

Less: Provision for diminution in value of Investments - - 

Total - - 

12.1  Procedures relating to windingup of Restile Marketing Private Ltd under Sec.560 of the Companies Act,1956 
has been complied with. Accordingly consolidated �nancial statements and details under section 129 of the 
Act, are not furnished.

Note 13 Long-term loans and advances

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

(a) Capital Advance - Land -  4.00 

(b) Security deposits (including Electricity Deposit) 0 0

Unsecured, considered good 120.60 131.97

Unsecured, considered Doubtful  2.08  2.08 

Less:Provision for Doubtful Deposits  (2.08)  (2.08)

Total 120.60 135.97

Note 14 Inventories

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

(a) Raw materials  68.43  98.58 

(b) Work-in-progress  28.65  30.18 

(c) Finished goods  161.75  197.07 

(d) Stores and spares  160.37  160.37 

Total  419.20  486.20 

Note:
1. Inventories are valued on the basis of the governing principles of lower of cost and Net Realisable value.
2.  In respect of stores and spares and raw materials, the carrying amount representing cost of item purchased 

in earlier year is estimated to realise higher values and hence no adjustments have been made to their 
carrying values.
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Note 15: Trade receivables 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six 
months from the date they were due for payment

Unsecured, considered good 56.22 51.80

Doubtful  7.25  7.28 

63.47 59.08

Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables (7.25) (7.28)

56.22  51.80 

Other Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good  -    0.18 

Total 56.22  51.98 

Note 16 Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

(a) Cash on hand  4.80  3.78 

(b) Balances with banks

  In current account  0.59  0.66 

Total  5.39  4.44 

Note 17 Short-term loans and advances

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

(a) Loans and advances to employees

   Unsecured, considered good 2.25 4.72

(b) Prepaid Expenses 0.63 0.44

(c) Balances with government authorities

  Unsecured, considered good

  (i) CENVAT credit receivable 188.82 123.58

  (ii) Service Tax credit receivable 0.00 48.09

188.82 176.83

(d) Refund of income tax recoverable 1.65 5.66

(e) Others

  Unsecured, considered good -

   Advance to suppliers 0.78 77.13

Total  194.13  259.62 
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Note 18 Other current assets

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Accruals 

Interest accrued on deposits 1.48  1.48 

Total 1.48  1.48 

Note 19 Revenue from Operations

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

(a) Sale of Products

Virtri�ed Tiles 31.01  77.21 

Feldspar and Quartz lumps 279.67  135.23 

(b) Other Operating Revenue  -    -   

Others  8.60  16.74 

Others-Spares  -    42.37 

Total  319.28  271.55 

Note 20 Other income

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

(a) Interest income  1.48  4.67 

(b) Net gain on foreign currency 
transactions and translation

0.87  0.52 

(c) Unclaimed balances written back  16.14  28.55 

(d) Other Income  2.27  0.76 

Total  20.76  34.50 

Note 21. Cost of Raw Materials consumed

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Opening stock  258.95  234.36 

Add: Purchases  254.64  163.01 

 513.59  397.37 

Less: Closing stock  228.80  258.95 

Cost of material consumed  284.79  138.42 
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21.1 Cost of Rawmaterials consumed comprise;

Sl.No. Particulars UOM 2016 2015

Quantity Value Rs Lacs Quantity Value Rs Lacs

(i) Ball Clay/Fledspar/Quartz etc.. Tonnes 41,582.00 279.79 15,561.500 50.36 

(ii) Zirconium sillicate/colour Tonnes - -

(iii) Ceramic Mixture Tonnes 0.000 - 1,859.900 84.06 

(iv) Others Tonnes - 5.00 - 4.00 

Total 284.79 138.42 

21.2 Of the above consumption indegenous items constitute 100% ( 2014 : 100%)

Note 22. Purchase of Traded goods

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Unglazed fully vitri�ed ceramic Tiles  0.75  0.09 

 0.75  0.09 

Note 23. Changes in inventories of �nished goods and work-in-progress 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Inventories at the end of the year:

Finished goods  161.74  197.07 

Work-in-progress  28.65  30.18 

 190.39  227.25 

Inventories at the beginning of the year:

Finished goods  197.07  264.79 

Work-in-progress  30.18  29.17 

 227.25  293.96 

Excise duty on Movement in Finished goods  (2.35) (0.60)

Net (increase) / decrease 34.51 66.11 

Note 24 Employee bene�ts expense

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Salaries,Wages and Bonus  64.41  94.62 

Contributions to provident and other funds  3.19  3.74 

Gratuity  2.09  7.94 

Staff welfare expenses  1.54  2.44 

Total  71.23  108.74 
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Note 25 Finance costs

As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Interest expense on: Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

 (i) Working Capital  24.30  84.90 

 (ii) Others - Bank Charges  1.84  3.09 

 (iii) Delayed remmittance of duties/taxes etc  0.72  7.74 

Total  26.86  95.73 

Note 26. Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Tangible assets As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

(a) Buildings

  Own use  38.64 38.64

(b) Plant and Equipment

  Owned  739.64 744.16

(c) Furniture and Fixtures

  Owned  4.44 15.92

(d) Vehicles

  Owned  1.90 7.34

(e) Of�ce equipment

  Owned  0.74 15.54

 Total  785.35  821.60 

Note 27 Other expenses

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Rent  1.90  0.64 

Repairs and maintenance - Buildings  -    0.04 

Repairs and maintenance - Machinery  -    0.86 

Repairs and maintenance - Others  1.70  2.43 

Insurance  1.17  1.39 

Rates and taxes  28.66  13.82 

Communication  1.05  1.58 

Sales commission  -    0.58 

Advertisement  0.56  -   

Business promotion  0.42  4.40 

Legal and professional  12.21  10.77 

Payments to auditors  4.06  4.00 

Bad Debts Written off 0.01 0.68 

Provison for Bad Debts receivables 0.00 (0.20)

Directors Sitting Fees  2.01  1.83 

Sitting fees expenses  0.18 
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Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

Vehicle expenses  3.39  3.97 

Listing Fees  3.50  -   

AGM Expenses  7.09  -   

Electricity charges  0.18  0.20 

Miscellaneous expenses  13.02  13.24 

Total  80.94  60.41 

27.1 Payments to the auditors comprises :

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

a. Towards Statutory Audit  3.50  3.50 

b. Towards Tax Audit  0.56  0.50 

Total  4.06  4.00 

27.2 Payments to Directors Sitting Fees:

Particulars As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015

Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs

(a) Board Meeting expenses

   Mr.T.S.Seetharaman  0.35  0.28 

   Mr.N.S.Ramachandran  0.28  0.21 

   Mr.G.Padmanabhan  0.21  0.14 

   Mr.N.Gopalakrishnan  0.21  0.28 

   Mr. N.S.Mani  0.28  0.28 

(b) Audit Committee expenses

   Mr.T.S.Seetharaman 0.08 0.08

   Mr.N.S.Ramachandran 0.08 0.06

   Mr.G.Padmanabhan 0.06 0.04

   Mr.N.Gopalakrishnan 0.06 0.08

   Mr. N.S Mani 0.06 0.08

(c) Out of Pocket expenses

   Mr.T.S.Seetharaman 0.05 0.04

   Mr.N.S.Ramachandran 0.04 0.03

   Mr.G.Padmanabhan 0.03 0.02

   Mr.N.Gopalakrishnan 0.03 0.04

   Mr. N.S Mani 0.04 0.04

(d)  Share Transfer committee expenses

   Mr.N.S.Ramachandran 0.15 0.13

 2.01  1.83 
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 28 31.03.16 31.03.15

Rs. In Lakhs Rs. In Lakhs

28.01 Contingent liabilities

a)  A case has been �led against the Company in 1997 regarding alleged 
sale and lease back of certain �xed assets belonging to the company. 
The Company has disputed the veracity of the sale and lease back 
arrangement particularly since there was no evidence of appropriate 
approvals on behalf of the Company. The case is pending adjudication 
before the High Court and consequently, the said Company books 
assets continue in possession of and properly re�ected in the account.

  The out�ow in respect of the above is not practicable to ascertain in 
view of the uncertainities involved.

b)  The Compnay has �led an appeal before the High Court of Madras against 
the demand for payment of excise aggregating Rs.123.57 lakhs towards 
shifting of machinery outside its premises. The said amount is considered 
recoverable since, in any event, the company has been advised that it will 
be entitiled to Cenvat Credit w.r.t the same.

c)

 (i) Kerala Sales Tax Deposit 8697552 8697552

 (ii) CST Appeal (10-11) 3023024 3023024

 (iii) CST Appeal (11-12) 461864 461864

28.02 Going concern Assumption

The Company has incurred recurring losses and is engaged in intermittent 
operations during the year. However, the �nancial statements have been 
pre-pared on a going concern on the basis of management plans to 
restructure operations to ensure viability of future operations in ensuing 
year. This would be in a manner as would enable the company to settle its 
obligations as and when they fall due.

28.03  i)  The company has during the year, adopted the useful lives prescribed 
in Schedule II to the Companies act, 2013 in respect of its �xed assets. 
Consequently, the carrying amount of the assets as on April 1, 2014:

  a) has been depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset and

  b)  has been charged to statement of Pro�t and Loss in respect of 
assets whose remaining useful life is Nil as on April 1,2014.

 ii)  The impact on the results of the year due to the aforesaid change in 
useful life of assets is a higher charge of depreciation of Rs.231.27 
lakhs and consequent higher loss.

 iii)  The charge to Statement of Pro�t and Loss in (i)(b) above is due to 
absence of surplus in the Reserves and Surplus in Note.2 to the 
�nancial statements and aggregates Rs.20.37 lakhs.
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28.06 Related party disclosure

A. Related Party Relationship

 a) Associate Companies

  1 Sologuard Medical Devices (P) Limited

  2. Athreya Finance Pvt Ltd

  3. Bell Granito Ceramica Limited

 b) Key Management Personnel

  Mr. Tribhuvan Simh Rathod - Managing Director

  Mr.Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod- Chairman

B. Related Party transactions and outstanding balances:

 (i) Associate Companies

  I Bell Granito Ceramica Ltd

   a) Purchase of Materials 0.75 0.10 

   b) Sale of Raw materials 294.03 161.09 

   c) Sales of Machinery spares 0.00 20.19 

   d) Advance/current account - Net increase/(decrease) 12.33 (4.36)

   e) Short-term loan taken 0.00 0.00 

   f) Advance/current Account -Balance 1187.56 1468.51 

   g) Short-term loan - Balance 234.65 234.65 

  II Sologuard Medical devices Pvt Ltd

   a) Short-term loan taken 0.00 0.00 

   b) Short-term loan repaid 0.00 3.50 

   c) Short-term loan - Balance 0.00 0.00 

   d) Deep Discount Bond outstanding 0.00 1730.83 

 (ii) Key management Personnel

   Mr.Tribhuvan Simh Rathod

   a) Salary 30.00 30.00 

   b) Salary Payable 57.27 37.38 

   c) Short-term Loan-Balance 3114.41 417.19 

  Mr.Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod

  Short-term Loan-Balance 0.00 124.95 
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28.07 Basic and Diluted earnings per share

Pro�t after taxation as per Statement of pro�t and loss (1006.72) (1095.00)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 98279239.00 98279239.00 

Par value of equity share Rs. 10.00 10.00 

Basic and Diluted earnings per share Rs. (1.02) (1.11)

28.08 The circularisation of balances of customers/suppliers is in 
progress

28.09 The Company has not received any information from “Suppli-
ers” regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act,2006 and hence disclosures, if 
any relating to the amounts unpaid as at the end of the year 
together with interest paid/payable under the Act have not 
been furnished.

28.10 Previous year’s �gures have been regrouped / reclassi�ed 
wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s 
classi�cation.

Signatures to the statement of Signi�cant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements

 For and on behalf of the Board 
 
 
 TRIBHUVAN SIMH RATHOD
 MANAGING DIRECTOR
 DIN:01996833
 

 T R SEETHARAMAN
 DIRECTOR
 DIN:02385221

 N. SUBRAMANIAN
 DIRECTOR 
 DIN:02577983
 
 M. SUBBARAO 
 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



REST I LE  CERAMICS L IMITED

78 30th ANNUAL REPORT 2015 – 16

STATEMENT ON SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1. Basis of accounting and preparation of �nancial statements

1.1 The �nancial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards speci�ed under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act”)/ Companies Act, 1956 (“the 1956 
Act”), as applicable. The �nancial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical 
cost convention except for certain categories of �xed assets that are carried at re-valued amounts. The 
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the �nancial statements are consistent with those fol-
lowed in the previous year.

1.2 All assets and liabilities have been classi�ed as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the revised schedule III to the 2013 Act based on the nature of 
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of 
current - noncurrent classi�cation of assets and liabilities.

2. Use of estimates

The preparation of the �nancial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to 
make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including con-
tingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year.  The Management believes that the 
estimates used in preparation of the �nancial statements are prudent and reasonable.  Future results could 
differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised 
in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

3. Tangible Fixed assets and depreciation

Cost of all assets, where the cost exceeds Rs. 10,000 and the estimated useful life is two years or more, is 
capitalized. Fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 
Cost of �xed assets is net of eligible credits under Cenvat / Vat Scheme. Expenditure directly related and 
incidental to construction are capitalized up to the date of attainment of commercial production. Interest and 
other related costs, including amortized cost of borrowings attributable only to qualifying assets are capital-
ized as part of the cost of the respective assets. Expenses incurred on major refurbishment extending the life 
of Plant and Machinery has been capitalized to the respective Asset. Capital work-in-progress is carried at 
cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Assets are depreciated on straight line basis, over their estimated useful life as below.
a) Assets subject to impairment, on the asset’s revised carrying amount, over its remaining useful life.

b) Other assets over the estimated useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

4. Investments 

Non-current investments are stated at cost. However, provision for diminution is made to recognize a decline, 
other than temporary, in the value of the investment, if any.

5. Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value; cost being ascertained on the following basis:

Stores, spares, consumable tools, and raw materials: on weighted average cost basis.
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Work-in-progress, �nished goods: under absorption costing method with the cost of incomplete 

Work at the end of the year, being estimated.

Cost includes taxes and duties and is net of eligible credits under Cenvat / Vat Schemes.

Obsolete / slow moving inventories are adequately provided for.

6. Foreign currency transactions and derivatives

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.   Monetary 
assets and liabilities in foreign currency are translated at closing rate. Exchange differences arising on set-
tlement or translation of monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the Statement of Pro�t and 
Loss . 

7. Amortization of deferred expenditure 

Expenditure incurred on raising capital and other preliminary expenses are amortised over a period of �ve 
years. All identi�able amounts spent on Brand Building resulting in long term bene�ts are amortized over the 
period the bene�t is expected to enure.

8. Revenue recognition

Sales are recognised, net of returns and trade discounts, on transfer of signi�cant risks and rewards of own-
ership to the buyer, which generally coincides with the despatch of goods to customers. Sales include excise 
duty but exclude sales tax and value added tax.

9. Research and Development Costs

Expenditure on research is charged to revenue as incurred.  Product development costs, including on new 
variants of existing products are recognised as Intangible assets and amortised. 

10. Employee bene�ts

(a) Short term employee bene�t obligations are estimated and provided for.

(b) Post employment bene�ts and other long term employee bene�ts

De�ned contribution plans:

Company’s contribution to provident fund, employee state insurance and other funds are determined 
under the relevant schemes and / or statute and charged to revenue.

De�ned bene�t plans and compensated absences:

Company’s liability towards gratuity, other retirement bene�ts and compensated absences are deter-
mined at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method, and the gains and losses are 
recognised in revenue.  

11. Deferred tax 

(a) Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences, being the difference between taxable income and 
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversing in one or more subsequent 
periods.

(b) Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognized only to the 
extent there is a virtual certainty of its realization.



REST I LE  CERAMICS L IMITED

80 30th ANNUAL REPORT 2015 – 16

12. Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is 
probable that an out�ow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable 
estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement bene�ts) are not discounted to their present value 
and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. 
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to re�ect the current best estimates. 

Statement on Signi�cant Accounting Policies and accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial 
Statements

As per our Report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For M.S. KRISHNASWAMI & RAJAN TRIBHUVAN SIMH RATHOD
Chartered Accountants Managing Director
Firm Registration No.01554S 

M S MURALI TR SEETHARAMAN
Partner Director
Membership No:26453

Place: Chennai

Date:  21 May 2016
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✄

RESTILE CERAMICS LIMITED

Registered of�ce: Malkapur Village, Hatnoora mandal, Narsapur Taluq, Medak Dist- 503 296, Telangana
CIN: L26931TG1986PLC006480, Email:restile@accountscare.com Tel: 91+8458-288772

Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s):  

Registered Address:  

E-mail ID:   Folio No./DPID and Client ID:  

RESTILE CERAMICS LIMITED

Registered of�ce: Malkapur Village, Hatnoora mandal, Narsapur Taluk, Medak Dist- 503 296, Telangana  
CIN: L26931TG1986PLC006480, Email:restile@accountscare.com Tel: 91+8458-288772

ATTENDENCE SLIP

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 30th Annual general meeting of the company on  Saturday , September 
24th 2016 at 11.30 A.M at Malkapur Village, Hatnoora Mandal, Narsapur Taluk, Medak Dist – 502296.

Folio No/DPID – Client ID:  

Full Name of the Shareholder in Block Letters:  

No of Shares Held:  

Name of Proxy (if any) in Block Letters: 

Signature of the Shareholder(s)
Note: 

1.  Shareholder/Proxy holder wishing to attend the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip/Proxy form as the 
case may be to the meeting and handover at the entrance duly signed. 

2.  Electronic copy of the Annual Report 2015-16 and notice of the Annual general meeting (AGM) along with 
Attendance Slip and Proxy form is being sent to all the members whose email address is registered with the 
Company/Depository participant unless any member has requested for hard copy of the same. Members 
receiving electronic copy and attending AGM can print copy of this Attendance Slip.

3.  Physical copy of the Annual Report as 2015-16 and notice of the Annual general meeting (AGM) along with 
Attend-ance Slip and Proxy form is being sent in the permitted mode(s) to all the members whose email is not 
registered (or) have requested for a hard copy.
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I/We, being the Member(s) of   shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint

1.  Name:   E-mail ID:   
 
Address:   

   Signature:  , or failing him/her

2.  Name:   E-mail ID:   
 
Address:   

   Signature:  

as my/our proxy to attend and vote, in case of a poll, for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30th Annual General Meeting of 
the Company, to be held on24th September 2016 at the Registered Of�ce of the Company and at any adjournment thereof in 
respect of such resolutions and in such manner as are indicated below:

Reso. No. Description  For*  Against*

1. Adoption of annual Accounts and Reports thereon for the �nancial year ended 31st March 2016.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Sri. Nalinkant Amratlal Rathod (DIN: 00272129) who retires by 
rotation and is eligible for reappointment.

3. To appoint Smt. Bharathi Nalin Rathod (DIN: 02587701) as Director who retires by rotation and is 
eligible for re-appointment

4. To re-appoint statutory auditors of the company and �x their remuneration

5. Re-appointment of Mr. Tribhuvan Simh Rathod as Managing Director of the Company.

6. Appointment of Mr. Gopalachari Padmanabhan as Independent Director of the Company;

7. Appointment of Mr. Tenkasi Ramanarayanan Seetharaman as Independent Director of the Company

8. To appoint Shri K.D. Shah as Non Executive Independent Director

9. Authority to borrow in excess of the paid up capital and reserves

10. Authority to create mortgages, charges and hypothecations

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

Notes:
1. Please put a ‘X’ in the Box in the appropriate column against the respective resolutions. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ 

column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

2. A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a 
person can act as proxy on behalf of not more than �fty Members and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of 
the total Share Capital of the Company. Members holding more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the Company 
may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act as proxy for any other Member

3. This form of Proxy, to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Of�ce of the Company Malkapur Village, Hatnoora 
mandal, Narsapur Taluk, Medak District – 502 296, Telangana not later than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the commence-
ment of the aforesaid meeting. 

✄
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✄

Dear Shareholder,

Sub: Green Initiative in Corporate Governance

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” by allowing 
paperless compliance by companies through electronics made. In accordance with the recent circular 
No.17/2011 dated 21.04.2011 and circular No 18/2011 dated 29.04.2011 issued by the Ministry, Companies 
can now send various notices and documents including annual report, to its shareholders through electronic 
mode to the registered e-mail addresses of shareholders. It is a welcome move for the society at large as 
this will reduce paper consumption to great extent and allow share holders to contribute towards a Greener 
Environment. This is a golden opportunity for every shareholder of Restile Ceramics Limited to contribute 
to the corporate Social Responsibility initiative of the Company.

We therefore invite all our shareholders to contribute to the cause by �lling up the form given below and 
send it back to our registry, Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.

Let’s be part of this ‘Green Initiative’

Please note that as a member of the company you will be entitled to receive all such communication in 
physical form, upon request.

E-COMMUICATION REGISTRATION FORM

(In items of circular no.17/2011 dated 21.04.2011 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs)

Folio No. /DPID &Client ID :

Name of 1st Registered Holder :

Name of joint Holder(s) :

Registered Address :

E mail ID (to be registered) :

I/we share holder(s) of Restile Ceramics Limited agree to receive Communication from the Company in 
electronic mode. Please Register my above e-mail id for sending communication through e-mail.

Date:…………..  Signature……………………………..

Note:
Shareholder(s) are requested to keep the company informed as and when there is any change in the e-mail 
address.



Registrars & Share Transfer Agents

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Ltd, 
“Subramanian Building”
1, Club House Road, Chennai 600 002.

All Correspondence may be addressed to them

If undelivered Please return to:

RESTILE CERAMICS LTD
1-10-177, VARUN TOWERS, 5TH FLOOR,

OPP. HYDERABAD PUBLIC SCHOOL,

BEGUMPET, HYDERABAD – 500 016


